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Financial Results

I am pleased to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2008. During the year, the Group achieved a profit from operations
of approximately HK$448.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately
30.0% compared with the previous financial year. The decrease was almost
entirely due to a decrease in valuation gains on investment properties, which
was HK$455.0 million in the said year, compared with the valuation gains of
HK$649.4 million in last year. Excluding the valuation gains on investment
properties, the Group recorded a loss from operations for the financial year
ended 31 March 2008 of approximately HK$6.8 million as compared with the

loss from operations of approximately HK$9.3 million of last year.

Business Review and Commentary on
Financial Results

Austin Hills Golf Resort, the Group’s golf and recreational club operation,
suffered a segment loss of HK$6.1 million for the financial year ended
31 March 2008. Segment revenue for the said year was HK$19.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$1.1 million compared with the
previous financial year. The operation results have shown slight improvement
for the year under review compared with the previous financial year due to

implementation of several cost-retrenchment measures during the year.

Interest income amounted to HK$22.7 million, an increase of approximately

HK$2.3 million compared with the previous financial year.
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Capital Structure and Liquidity

The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2008 was HK$5,373.5 million,
compared with HK$4,936.0 million at 31 March 2007. As announced on
20 October 2006, the Company has entered into a facility agreement with
a bank comprising of a 5-year term loan facility of up to HK$1 billion and
a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200 million. The Company
has an option to extend the facilities for two additional years, subject to,
among other things, the agreement of the lending bank. At 31 March 2008,
the banking facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$130 million and the
Group’s gearing ratio was 2.4% (calculated as total bank loan over total

equity).

Outlook

The development of iSQUARE on the site located at No. 63 Nathan Road,
Kowloon (Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425) owned by the Company is in
progress. Foundation and basement excavation works had been completed and
the superstructure construction was commenced in February 2008. Barring
unforeseen circumstances, the entire project is anticipated to be completed
in 2009. The present estimated cost of construction for this project is around

HKS$1.3 billion and this will be mainly financed by external borrowings.

Since the Group’s main sources of income have disappeared during the
redevelopment period with the closure of the business of a hotel and the
hotel’s shopping arcade formerly on the site, this has and will continue to
have a very substantial negative impact on the revenue and results of the
Group. In the circumstances it is likely that no dividend will be paid before

completion of the redevelopment.

Contingent Liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in note 28 to the

financial statements.
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Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the Company will be held on
Wednesday, 10 September 2008.

Dividend

The Board has resolved that in view of the cessation of the main business
of the Group which was the operation of a hotel and the hotel’s shopping
arcade, no final dividend will be paid to shareholders (2007: HK$Nil). As
no interim dividend was paid during the year, there will be no dividend paid
for the entire year (2007: HK$Nil). The register of members of the Company
will be closed for the purpose of determining the identity of members who
are entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting from Thursday,
4 September 2008 to Wednesday, 10 September 2008, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrars not later than 4:30 pm on

Wednesday, 3 September 2008.

Staff

At 31 March 2008, the total number of employees of the Group was 122.

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside training

courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I wish to thank all our staff for their devotion

and dedication in the past year.
Cheong Hooi Hong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 July 2008
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This commercial complex will house a number of retail, entertainment, food
and beverage establishments. It is well located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui
and easily accessible. Construction work is in progress and is expected to be

completed in year 2009.

Austin Hills Golf Resort

This golf resort is at the southernmost city of Malaysia, Johor Bahru.
There are three 9-hole golf courses. Other entertainment facilities include
tennis courts, a driving range, games rooms, pool tables, bowling alleys,
and a swimming pool. There are also 66 suites and food and beverage

establishments.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholders and is therefore
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. To
accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure, and

identified and formalised appropriate measures.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) except that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer were not separated and
performed by two individuals, which was inconsistent with code provision

A.2.1 of the CG Code.

In respect of the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. The Board of Directors considers that the current structure does
not have any adverse effect on the Company and believes that this structure

enables the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its code for dealing in securities in the Company by its directors (“Model
Code”). Specific enquiry has been made with all directors of the Company of
any non-compliance with the Model Code, and all directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

year ended 31 March 2008.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors during the year ended 31 March 2008 comprises the

following directors:

Executive directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive directors
Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Mr Lau Wah Sum

Independent non-executive directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Lee Chung

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the directors who are

members of the Cheong family own business outside the Group together.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group. It
formulates objectives, overall strategies and business plans and oversees the
financial and management performance of the Group. For efficient operation,
certain functions and authorities are delegated to the management, which
include implementation of objectives, strategies and plans adopted by the

Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.
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EEWMIE (8) Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow of the Group.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2008 on a going concern basis, the Directors have adopted suitable
accounting policies and, other than the new and revised accounting policies
as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, applied them consistently
with those applied to the financial statements of the previous financial year.
The Directors have also made judgements and estimates which are prudent

and reasonable.

The Directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Group. The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in

the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 35 to 37.

Six board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, were held
during the year ended 31 March 2008. Individual attendance of each of the

directors is set out below:

H R B M A R R
EH Directors Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HAITHEF Executive directors
SIS ST A (B Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/6
$EHI MR A (B ) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 6/6
S A 2 A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 3/6
4 2P S A Mr Cheong Sim Lam 5/6
SRR /N IH Miss Cheong Chong Ling 6/6
FEHATEF Non-executive directors
UEAH I S AR Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 6/6
B2 R e A Mr Lau Wah Sum 6/6
W r FEHITHEF Independent non-executive directors
& 2= A Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 6/6
k4= 53 s A Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 6/6
RS Mr Lee Chung 5/6
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Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors

The non-executive directors are appointed for a term of one year whilst
independent non-executive directors are appointed for the period commencing
from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the conclusion of the
following annual general meeting. According to the Company’s Articles of
Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but eligible for re-election,

at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each independent non-
executive director about his independence as set out in rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
independent non-executive directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration of Directors

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain
directors and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at competitive
level. In order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration
committee. Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no director or his
associates is allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his own

remuneration.
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Remuneration of Directors (continued)

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors and two non-executive directors. The members are Mr Chow
Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Lau Wah Sum, Mr Sin Cho
Chiu, Charles, Mr Lee Chung and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam. The main duties
of the remuneration committee are to assist the Company in formulating
remuneration policy and structure for directors and senior management; to
determine the remuneration packages for all executive directors and senior
management; to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration for
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors; to review
and approve performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals
and objectives; to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss or termination
of their office or appointment; and to review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct.
Details of the remuneration committee’s authority and duties are set out in the
written terms of reference, a copy of which is available on application to the

company secretary.

Remuneration for executive directors and senior management is determined
by the remuneration committee on the recommendations of the chief
executive officer (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong whose remuneration package
is determined by the remuneration committee without recommendation of or
reference to the chief executive officer) on an annual basis. The remuneration
committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the review of
remuneration for non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors annually. For all other staff, it is the executive directors who fix
their remuneration packages on the recommendations of their respective

department heads on an annual basis.

The amount of remuneration payable to the directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the workload, responsibility and
time commitment of the directors. When determining the remuneration
packages for senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and executive directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market condition, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.
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Remuneration of Directors (continued)

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 26 to the financial
statements on page 118, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the remuneration committee held two
meetings, at which, the committee reviewed and made recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure; considered
and fixed the remuneration packages for executive directors and senior
management; and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

for both the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors.

The attendance record of each member of the remuneration committee is set

out below:

R & IR AR R IR
B Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
JH =W, (A& F ) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 2/2
B H#e AR Mr Lau Wah Sum 2/2
VEAE I S A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 22
k2= B e A Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
NS Mr Lee Chung 22
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Nomination of Directors

The Company does not have a nomination committee as the role and function

of such committee are currently performed by the Board.

As regards nomination of directors, the Board is responsible for the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of directors. For appointment of a
new director, the Board considers not only the skills and experience of the
candidate, but also his/her value to the Company, so as to ensure that there is
a balanced composition of the Board. The process for re-election of a director
is pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, which requires that
(i) every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election; and
(ii) directors who are appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall
retire at the next annual general meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual
vacancies shall retire at the next general meeting (instead of the next annual

general meeting) and directors so appointed are eligible for re-election.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2008, the Board has made
recommendations and provided biographical details to shareholders of the
Company on directors standing for re-election. The Chairman from time
to time reviews the composition of the Board with particular regard to the
number of independent non-executive directors. The Board also reviews and

determines the suitability and terms for re-appointment of directors.
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HHRRA

Nomination of Directors (continued)

EHE _FENF=ZH=Z"+T—HILHFERNN  Among the six board meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2008,

AMBAKEFT TR

o IR G ERELE ST two of the meetings have covered issues in relation to re-appointment of

ZHERAH S EHHFEZWRK ARG directors. The individual attendance of each of the directors at the said two

M WEWR

EoE

HITEF
SEMRAR S A ()
S8 38 MRS A ()
S AR R ST A
HEEE R
SEHE e /N H

HHITEF
UEAHR IR SR
PITERR AL

B3 A AT
s ek
W2 9 g
Fihek

board meetings is set out below:

H RS e A R

Directors Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

Executive directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 172
Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 2/2
Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2

Non-executive directors
Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
Mr Lau Wah Sum 2/2

Independent non-executive directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
Mr Lee Chung 2/2
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Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Auditors of the Company,
KPMG, provided audit services to the Group of a value of approximately
HK$515,000. KPMG also provided non-audit services to the Group of a value
of approximately HK$253,000, including HK$102,000 and HK$142,000 being

provision of tax services and charges on interim review respectively.

Audit Committee

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are
to make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors; to approve remuneration and terms of
engagement, and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of external auditors; to review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process;
to discuss with the external auditors on the nature and scope of audit
and reporting obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and
implement policy on engagement of external auditors to supply non-audit
services; to oversee financial reporting system and internal control procedure
and to review financial information of the Group. Details of the audit
committee’s authority and duties are set out in the written terms of reference,

a copy of which is available on application to the company secretary.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two non-executive directors. The members are Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
(committee chairman), Mr Lau Wah Sum, Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Lee
Chung and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam.
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AUdlt Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the audit committee met four times,
at which the audit committee made recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of the external auditors, approved the remuneration of the
external auditors; reviewed the half-year and annual financial statements of
the Group, including integrity and significant financial reporting judgements
contained therein, before submission to the Board for approval; discussed
with the external auditors the nature and scope of the audit and scope and
extent of interim review before commencement of annual audit and interim
review in respect of the Group respectively; ensured that the Company
had complied with its policy on engagement of external auditors to supply
non-audit services to the Group; reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system and met the external auditors without the presence of

executive board members of the Company.

The attendance record of each member of the audit committee is set out

below:

R & IR R R IR
)5A= Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
JHEW L (Z A& FF) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 4/4
B #e AR Mr Lau Wah Sum 4/4
YA B e A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 4/4
k4= 55 56 A Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 4/4
NS Mr Lee Chung 4/4
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system and
reviewing its effectiveness. Procedure and systems are in place to safeguard
assets against unauthorised use or disposition; to maintain proper accounting
records and to ensure accuracy of financial information and compliance
with applicable statutes, rules and regulations. Defined roles, responsibilities
and reporting lines are established. However, these procedure and systems
are designed to minimise and mitigate the risk of failure in operation and
achievement of the Company’s objectives and can only provide reasonable

but not absolute assurance against errors, losses or fraud.

The Board, with the assistance of the audit committee of the Company, has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2008. The review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and risk management functions. Based on the result of the review, the Board
is not aware of any significant areas of concern which needs to be brought to

the attention of the shareholders.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with

the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Principal Place of Business

Associated International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at Room 502, Euro Trade Centre, 21-23 Des

Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries during the financial year is set

out in note 4 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the five largest suppliers and five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases

and sales respectively.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the state of the
Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 38 to 121.
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PN ] Transfer to Reserves

MR BRSO B SR BE A Wi I & ¥ W Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$399,436,000
399,436,0007C ( —EELAE + #515530,449,00070) (2007: HK$530,449,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other movements
T AR o A 00 oAt 38 B 745 50 A E in reserves are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

B KBS iE24

WA ALEEO AL FEEY — WIS MIE  The Board has resolved that in view of the cessation of the main business of
JEH SR > EEGE IR ARERI  the Group which was the operation of a hotel and the hotel’s shopping arcade,
BPBHR (CEZ LA M) o iR AN " no final dividend will be paid to shareholders (2007: HK$Nil). As no interim
AFFERFIREPHIRD > FH 2R dividend was paid during the year, there will be no dividend paid for the

AT R (R L4 ) o entire year (2007: HK$Nil).
=, . .
EERX Charitable Donations
A B AR A BE TR Y 28 35 1R 3K 2 W BE5,000C  Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$5,000 (2007
(=TT L4 %%55,00075) ° HK$55,000).
[l 72 B A Fixed Assets

W 5 I B B R O AR B R R R R 13 - Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

AEBMPEEWENT The investment properties of the Group are as follows:
Cigciky/E S Property under redevelopment
ik
o B AH# & MBS OOE B VARG B TIAR MR MR R
Expected
Intended Term Stage of year of Gross Group’s
Location use  of lease completion completion  Site area floor area interest
JUTE BB AN+ =58 [EES H 4 EHETRE 20094 4,044 53,048 100%
(JLHE T L Bt 7425 %%) AT F-J7 K F-J7 ok
63 Nathan Road, Kowloon Commercial ~Medium Superstructure 2009 4,044 sqm 53,048 sq m 100%
(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425) construction

in progress
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B E R ()

HLE 15 B A I (1 36

Fixed Assets (Continued)

Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation

o BA & LB 47 )
Location Existing use Term of lease
i3 M PN T8 KA s i

R AR, - —BEAR A T

HiRLL >~ L2~ L3 KLAPF AL

JUBEBE T B — I R I

(LY 1A b B 22 5%)

Good Luck Industrial Building Workshops and Medium

Unit A on the Ground and Ist Floor,

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,

105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

PTD 58065 to 58149 and PTD 58151,
Mukim of Tebrau, Johor Bahru, Johor,
Malaysia

car parking spaces

M E TR

Undetermined Freehold
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive directors

Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam
Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive directors

Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Lau Wah Sum

Independent non-executive directors

Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Lee Chung

In accordance with articles 103, 104 and 109 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi, Yau Allen
Lee-nam and Lee Chung shall retire from the board by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed
to their respective executive offices in the Company for an initial period of
two years effective on 1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after
the said period unless and until either party gives to the other three months’

notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors
and Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2008, the directors and chief executives of the Company and
their associates had the following interests in the shares of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”):

(a) A7 W] (a) The Company
i T i L 9 W 10T 9 2 i ke B
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
15 81T
B 2 HE A JBe oy 48 8
5l N\ HE 25 E L O Vi) HE A A M 43 b
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
/A Name interests interests interests interests shares
S LA Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 — — 2,073,992 0.58%
FZ RN Cheong Kheng Lim 26,089,715 34,000 — 26,123,715 7.26%
S M R Cheong Keng Hooi 15,275,839 275,280 — 15,551,119 4.32%
$ 4% F Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 — 1,831,155 0.51%
$f 3% Cheong Chong Ling 588,000 — — 588,000 0.16%
e I Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 — 120,000 362,000 0.10%
(#F) (Note)

BEo0 S TEIHERE R A9120,000 % £ IR A BR 2N | BT
H 19120,000 A 8 78 B o AR 45 B IR B 5 ik
B) > vk AH R e A A B A I A R O3 1 R
35 o

Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary shares
held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.
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EHNMNEREITHANE i‘?ﬁ A1 Interests and Short Positions of Directors
fir ~ MBIy P HERE R HE 22 and Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying
IR () Shares and Debentures (continued)

(b) Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.  (b) Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.

9 5 T L RS 2K Y R 0 100 35 4 B 0
Number of ordinary shares of MYR1 each
1 B8 AT
B 16 WE 7 T4y 4 8
sl \HE 25 5 Ji§ HE 2 A E RERR Ay I 43 kb
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
A Name interests interests interests interests shares
$ 5 bR Cheong Kheng Lim 1 — — 1 0.00001%
Sl 5% e Cheong Sim Lam — 3 — 3 0.00003%
1A ¥ Cheong Chong Ling 1 — — 1 0.00001%
(c) K1 = A PR A A (c) Tian Teck Land Limited
5 5 T L 9 U 0.25 76 e 4 Bt 9
Number of shares of HK$0.25 each
1 B8 AT
B 16 HE 75 T4y 48 9
fisl N\ HE 25 5 i HE 2 A RERR A I 43 kb
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
A Name interests interests interests interests shares
R Cheong Hooi Hong 4,625,792 — — 4,625,792 0.97%
$ 13 HR Cheong Kheng Lim 46,023,872 115,292 — 46,139,164 9.72%
S A0 fi Cheong Keng Hooi 26,912,036 1,002,384 — 27,914,420 5.88%
25 Cheong Sim Lam 1,099,504 — — 1,099,504 0.23%
1A ¥ Cheong Chong Ling 412,000 — — 412,000 0.09%
VEAH B Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2,000 — 115,200 117,200 0.02%
(#%) (Note)
FE A EIHESS N 19115,200 % 25 BE 9 AT BR 2N W) T Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares held by
FEH 19 115,200 B 13 o AR5 B 25 2 A 5 0k Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be interested in
1) - e A5 W S A Bl A 2 B A U A IR Y RE such shares under the SFO.
35 o
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EHNMNEREITEANE i‘?ﬁ A1 Interests and Short Positions of Directors
fir ~ MBIy P HERE R HE 22 and Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying
IR () Shares and Debentures (continued)

/i fy . . . .
(d) REEA BRA A (d) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited
I T i R 1 T R T
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
1 B BAT
B 2 A JBe oy 48 8
6l A 2 E L O Vi) HE A A M 43 b
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
i A Name interests interests interests interests shares
S LA Cheong Hooi Hong 25 — — 25 25%
$l 35 AR Cheong Kheng Lim 25 — — 25 25%
S A Cheong Keng Hooi 25 — — 25 25%
$E 55 Cheong Sim Lam 25 — — 25 25%
34 e = . . ..
(e) #afd A FRA A (e) Yik Fok Investment Holding Company, Limited
5 i v A 9 B 100 0 O R T
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
b B 4T
JEEER JB A3 48 45
fisl \HE 25 5 Ji§ HE 2 AL £ Ay FONER =
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
w4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
S A Cheong Hooi Hong 10 — — 10 0.00005%
$7 B3 bR Cheong Kheng Lim 10 — — 10 0.00005%
S Cheong Keng Hooi 10 — — 10 0.00005%
5 4% 7 Cheong Sim Lam 10 — — 10 0.00005%

24
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors
and Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the directors and
chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”))
had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2008, other than the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

B B I E #1100 15 S8 AT B A
i giildd AW E 4 L
Number of Percentage of

ordinary shares total issued

of HK$1 each shares

KA AT PR AN ) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(#£1) (Note 1)

R Ak 2 A PR A Tian Teck Land Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(#£1) (Note 1)

LR RN Cheong Kheng Lim 26,123,715 7.26%
(7£2) (Note 2)

=L Lim Yoke Soon 26,123,715 7.26%

(§£3) (Note 3)
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R e HA N R A Y I
7 FIAR B BBE A3 1) B i B TR ()

7

(1) 3808 G o I B 6 101 ) 565 336 16 i A5 77 1 e 17
HE #5 Bk B E MBUR > K184 R 7 T i 2
PO ME £ B O 748 00 78 A PR ) % % 19 180,030,681 i
B AR o

(2) HE HI MK J Ak BE A 226,123,715 & B Ay B
26,089,715 [ 2% $5 53 AR 56 A= 8 A F5: A > 34,000 B
Ay AR E B L L Hf -

B3) MBI LA 226,123,715 R B A4 H 1434,000 A%
Py E B R AFEA 0 26,089,715 B Bl & HoFd
18 6 39 MR A R AT -

S T D S S AN S |
= B AR S AT B AT AT A
PR 22 R o R 191 2 336 A Tl 2 M A 17 T i
V8 AR 2 ) B3 R I B3 14 M 2 R A o

=R A AR R i

AR ) BCHE AT AT B R 2 ) B M A TR A A
IR 2 AR AR AT ] IR ] > 39 AT AR A
G R RS Ee i N -y
# o

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

(1)  The register of interests and short positions in shares kept under section 336 of the
SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by Tian Teck Investment Holding Co.,
Limited is the same as the 180,030,681 shares disclosed by Tian Teck Land Limited.

(2) Out of the 26,123,715 shares in which Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is interested,
26,089,715 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim himself, and 34,000 shares
were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

(3)  Out of the 26,123,715 shares in which Ms Lim Yoke Soon is interested, 34,000 shares
were held by Ms Lim Yoke Soon herself, and 26,089,715 shares were held by her
spouse, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, no other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

have been notified to the Company.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or controlling shareholders was a party, or in which a director of the
Company had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly), subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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(ERLEEH Management Contracts

A El BEEPER AR — REMERRAF The Company has an administrative services agreement and also a
F1 A M B A AT BOUIR TS B I A7 B 5 i e non-administrative services agreement, each for an indefinite period, with its
WIEZEW R > AXAFRZEAERAFRME immediate holding company, Tian Teck Land Limited, whereby the Company
TEAT BUWR B 1wk T 09 2 ) B 2 IROBS B 7E FF agrees to provide, respectively, company secretarial services (under the
TR ik N BEA Z 3 LBk B o A7  administrative services agreement) and office space and various staff (under
A A AR AR N U B I B AR BE 25 5 the non-administrative services agreement). The aggregate fees received by
1,200,000 7C ( — & F £ 4 : # %1,200,000 the Company for the year ended 31 March 2008 amounted to HK$1,200,000
Je) e (2007: HK$1,200,000).

o U 4 R NN N N L Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and
(RS FTAEAT A B 2 B s P E K administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

SrIEIG ) o Company was entered into or existed during the year.

A w) B KM 22 A g L > o Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the

B B ] F T RE R Company and its Subsidiaries of its Listed
Securities

AREEFEN > AL A BCHALTHE A B There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed
B~ BB R AN E Z BT securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

On 20 October 2006, the Company, as borrower, entered into a facility
agreement with a bank (the “Facility Agreement”) with covenants relating to

specific performance of its controlling shareholders.

The Facility Agreement comprises a 5-year term loan facility of up to
HKS$1 billion and a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200 million.
The Company has an option to extend the facilities for two additional years,

subject to, among other things, the agreement of the lending bank.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default if
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi
and Mr Cheong Sim Lam, collectively being the controlling shareholders
of the Company and its listed parent company, Tian Teck Land Limited,
cease to beneficially own, directly or indirectly, at least 25% of the issued
share capital of the Company in accordance with the terms of the Facility

Agreement.

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, the lending bank may,
among other things, demand immediate repayment of all of the loans made to

the Company under the Facility Agreement together with accrued interest.

The Company will make continuing disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.21 of
the Listing Rules in subsequent interim and annual reports for so long as the

circumstances giving rise to the relevant obligation continue to exist.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other disclosure

obligations under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Company and the Group

as at 31 March 2008 are set out in notes 21 to 23 to the financial statements.
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Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 122 to 124 of the annual report.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 26 to the financial

statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors to

be independent.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 July 2008
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 61, has been Chairman and a director of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively.
He is a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and also a
director of all holding companies and subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong
is a member of the CPA Australia, holding a diploma of the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Commerce and a member of the Institute of
Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. He has extensive experience in
property development and investment both in Hong Kong and Singapore for

over 40 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 59, has been Deputy Chairman and a director
of the Company since 1984. He has been the Deputy Chairman and a director
of Tian Teck Land Limited since 1983 and 1969 respectively. Mr Cheong is
a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and also a director
of all holding companies and subsidiaries in the Group (except Austin Hills
Land Sdn. Bhd., Austin Hills Country Resort Pte. Ltd., Austin Hills View
Sdn. Bhd. and Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd.).

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 55, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is a director of
Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and also a director of all holding
companies and subsidiaries in the Group (except Austin Hills View Sdn. Bhd.
and Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd.). Mr Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of

Business Administration from the University of Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 49, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is a director
of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and also a director of all
holding companies and subsidiaries in the Group. He obtained a certificate
in Accounting and General Business from Kapiolani Community College,

Hawaii and has over 28 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Keng Hooi and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 37, joined the Company as an assistant to
directors in 1997. She was appointed as a director of the Company and Tian
Teck Land Limited effective from 1 January 2007. Miss Cheong holds a
degree of Bachelor of Science from the School of Hotel Administration at

Cornell University.
She is a daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, the Deputy Chairman and a

director of the Company and is also the niece of directors, Messrs Cheong

Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 72, has been a director of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1985 and 1984 respectively. He
currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited and was the company secretary
of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited from 1990 to 2004. Mr Sin is
a solicitor and a notary public and holds a degree of Master of Arts from the
University of Cambridge. He was Chairman of Kam Ngan Stock Exchange
from 1985 to 1986 and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from
1987 to 1988. He is a former Chairman of the Home Ownership Scheme
Committee and the Management Committee of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority and a former member of the Urban Council and the Executive

Committee of the Housing Society.

Mr Lau Wah Sum, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 80, has been a director of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1988 and 1993 respectively.
He currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee
of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Lau was a Legislative
Councillor from 1988 to 1995, Chairman of the Court and Council of
the Hong Kong Baptist University and Chairman of the Urban Renewal
Authority. He is also a member of the Court of the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and an independent non-executive director of another

listed company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited in 2004.
He currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee
of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Chow has significant
experience in accounting and finance and has been an Associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 1983 and an
Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia since 1988

and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited in 2004.
He currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee
of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Yau has extensive legal
knowledge and experience. He qualified as a barrister in England in 1964 and
practised as an advocate and solicitor in Singapore and Malaysia, and as an
advocate in the State of Brunei before coming to Hong Kong. Mr Yau was

admitted to Hong Kong Bar in 1985 and practised as a barrister until 2001.

Mr Lee Chung, aged 34, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in 2004. He currently also serves on the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr Lee holds a
degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering from Colorado School of Mines
in the United States and a MBA degree from the University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. He has extensive experience in venture capital and property

investment in the United States, Israel and PRC.
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Senior Management

Miss Chan Mei Yee, CPA, ACCA, aged 31, is senior accountant and is
designated as the qualified accountant of the Company pursuant to Rule 3.24
of the Listing Rules. She has nearly 8 years of experience in accounting and
auditing. Prior to joining the Company in 2004, she worked for one of the big

four accounting firms.

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 57, joined the Company in 1987 and has
been financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Company, Miss Chan
was a chief accountant of the Company’s ultimate holding company. She has

over 28 years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 51, joined the Group in 1981 and has been the

Company’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 38, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Company in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company and

Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of

Associated International Hotels Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Associated
International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 38 to
121, which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31 March 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

8 July 2008
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4 A HEZEFE Consolidated Income Statement

BEDER)FE=H =+ —HILFEE (LI FI/R) For the Year Ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2008 2007
It it T i Tt
Note $°000 $7000
B Turnover 3&4 17,792 18,585
RH /& & A Cost of services/sales (15,588) (16,674)
2,204 1,911
HoA e A Other revenue 5 25,816 23,197
HAth (F548) g 45 i F % Other net (loss)/income 5 (1,285) 1,754
& W) 2 Ak (B 2R Valuation gains on investment properties 13(a) 455,008 649,447
HoAth #) 22 3 (A k58 1] Reversal of impairment loss
in respect of other properties 13(a) 4,014 3,596
i 28 1 Selling expenses (721) (634)

FECE A Administrative expenses (36,781) (39,107)
#8725 Y5 Profit from operations 4 448,255 640,164
Rl R A Finance costs 6(a) (141) (215)
I A I i Profit before taxation 6 448,114 639,949
R Income tax 9(a) (48,678) (109,500)
A ) BE 3% B A A Profit for the year attributable to

AR A B 14 F equity shareholders of the Company 10 399,436 530,449
AR AR B e AT A W) RE 2 Dividends payable to equity

Ji BB B shareholders of the Company

attributable to the year: 11(a)

AR N B E IR O R Interim dividend declared during the year — —
45 H R Final dividend proposed after the

A R S balance sheet date — _
HRBA — A KW  Earnings per share — basic and diluted 12 $1.11 $1.47

55457 575 121 B BT B A A e R — 4 o

The notes on pages 45 to 121 form part of these financial statements.
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ZERFNAEZH =1 —H (LI HF17R) At 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

24 A )
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
B ? T Tt Fii T
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FE B Non-current assets
EEE Fixed assets 13
— Gy E — Investment properties 5,561,101 4,963,672 5,497,050 4,904,130
— HAE - B — Other properties, plant and
V&L equipment 270,668 256,234 12,266 12,544
5,831,769 5,219,906 5,509,316 4,916,674
R R 2 W) B RE 4 Interest in subsidiaries 14 — = 320,718 300,677
IR HE oL IE S Deferred tax assets 9(d) 97 109 — _
5,831,866 5,220,015 5,830,034 5,217,351
o Current assets
& Inventories 235 259 — —
REWHIR K ~ 7T 4 Accounts receivable, deposits
B FE AT and prepayments 16 3,883 5,403 1,436 2,194
JRE Wi 7 15 B Tax recoverable 9(c) — 69 — _
B BB S E Cash and cash equivalents 17 474,145 457,370 470,116 451,079
478,263 463,101 471,552 453,273
I £ Current liabilities
JEAT RS~ HoA Accounts payable, other payables
A 3k K E =2 and accruals 18 67,062 38,345 57,751 28,285
BT & Deposits received 19 5,022 4,977 1,245 77
1= W MR 75 4 M Provision for long service
payments 20 1,282 1,253 1,282 1,253
B ASF Wi 2 ) I Amounts due to subsidiaries 15 — — 20,109 19,051
Tl AR Obligations under finance leases 22 140 124 — —
21 i A B Current taxation 9(c) 44 64 _ _
73,550 44,763 80,387 48,666
L By ¢ A Net current assets 404,713 418,338 391,165 404,607
e 48 E Total assets less current
WE £ liabilities 6,236,579 5,638,353 6,221,199 5,621,958
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% 5% (41) Balance Sheets (Continued)

ZRENAEZH =+ —H (LB FIR) At 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

A4 PN/
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Bt T Tt Fii T
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FE T B A Non-current liabilities
WATEH — AW Bank loan — secured 21 130,000 — 130,000 —
JRE S T b A Government lease
premiums payable 23 2,367 2,406 2,367 2,406
Bl & B R E Obligations under finance leases 22 70 188 — =
W 2E 1 0 B Deferred tax liabilities 9(d) 730,655 699,732 730,655 699,732
HoAty A % A 7 Other financial liabilities 2 2 — _
863,094 702,328 863,022 702,138
B e NET ASSETS 5,373,485 4,936,025 5,358,177 4,919,820
AR R St CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24
J A% Share capital 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
bt Reserves 5,013,485 4,576,025 4,998,177 4,559,820
HE 25 407 TOTAL EQUITY 5,373,485 4,936,025 5,358,177 4,919,820

EHGR FT/NELANE BUEN FF AT

B -

#HH

5545 5 55 121 E A BT B A A i R — 4 o

40

HF
8 35 1K

Cheong Hooi Hong

Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 July 2008.

Cheong Kheng Lim

Director

The notes on pages 45 to 121 form part of these financial statements.
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AL 5B Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEDER)FE=H =+ —HILFEE (LI FI/R) For the Year Ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2008 2007
I it T+ Tt
Note $°000 $°000

J#£2007/20064F4 5 1 H Total equity at 1 April 2007/2006

A AR 2 4 24(a) 4,936,025 4,387,366
R AR AR R R Y Net income recognised directly in equity:

W25 3
AT Y HE 25 AR R Y Changes in fair value of available-for-sale

N B (E SR ) equity securities 24(a) — 265
i 2% A1 T 728 26 1Y Changes in deferred tax resulting from

R AT 3 TH 5 ) decrease in tax rate 24(a) 17,613 —
5 A1 B B A ) Exchange differences on translation of

T 5 e % o E AR financial statements of overseas

HA) I 5, 25 B subsidiaries 24(a) 20,333 18,452
A H B TERE £ Net income for the year recognised

w8 B W 4t T A directly in equity 37,946 18,717

AR Transfer from equity:
[ i 8 Al 3 L B R A Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of

R T 48 AR 4 available-for-sale equity securities 24(a) — (619)
A4 JE Vi FI] R Net profit for the year 24(a) 399,436 530,449
AR A FE TR Total recognised net income for the year

B A A 437,382 548,547
B G R RN Movement in equity arising from

RE#5 S5 ) < capital transactions:
Bi g 2 ) B2 AT 48 S IR Premium in respect of preference shares

T 18 S P R R A issued to preference shareholders of

R T 5 a subsidiary 24(a) 78 112
3 H 31 H A RE %5 48 5 Total equity at 31 March 24(a) 5,373,485 4,936,025

545 120 FL MR8 A I B H R N — B0 o

The notes on pages 45 to 121 form part of these financial statements.
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HEB 4R EZR Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BEDER)FE=H =+ —HILFEE (LI FI/R) For the Year Ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2008 2007
Wit &t Tt Tt Tt Tt
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
s S Operating activities
o i T Ve ) Profit before taxation 448,114 639,949
AHEETEH Adjustments for:
— F Sk A — Interest income (22,670) (20,393)
— il & R A — Finance costs 141 215
— e — Depreciation 8,182 8,215
— &Y — Valuation gains on
At (B 22 7| investment properties (455,008) (649,447)
— HoAth 1 2 Wk — Reversal of impairment loss
Jh 5 o ] in respect of other properties (4,014) (3,596)
— [ R &y it — Transfer from equity on
5 £ AR disposal of available-for-sale
M B A 45 equity securities — (619)
— % [ — Net profit on disposal of
RINEE fixed assets (249 (401)
— ETiERm — Dividend income from
B Bl A listed securities — (210)
— S 5 — Foreign exchange
518, (B A losses/(gains) 1,723 (790)
(471,895) (667,026)
w5 W A 5 A Operating loss before changes
REER in working capital (23,781) (27,077)
& Decrease in inventories 42 27
MEUHEZX ~ 514 & Decrease in accounts receivable,
TAAT RS deposits and prepayments 978 1,607
JE A IR~ Decrease in accounts payable,
At AT 3R K other payables and accruals
JRE =T 22 Bl b (1,453) (3.371)
BT & Wb Decrease in deposits received (232) (556)
= A R 4 Ve A Increase/(decrease) in provision
wwm S (A for long service payments 29 (207)
JREASH BT HuAE 3k > Decrease in government lease
premiums payable 39) 37)
(675) (2,537)
R EH AN Cash used in operations
B4 75 carried forward (24,456) (29,614)




AR EE

(#) Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
WEEEANEZH =+ —H IR (

i SQUARE

DL H5317%)  For the Year Ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2008 2007
Wit 7t T T Tt T
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
TR 88 Cash used in operations
B F o B 4 brought forward (24,456) (29,614)
(Bff) /BEBEBIE Tax (paid)/refunded
— (Bf)) /BE% — Hong Kong profits tax
R i) (paid)/refunded (189) 7,217
—BE®E (BEff) — Overseas tax
W ANB TR refunded/(paid) 111 (20)
78 7,197
KEWEE Net cash used in operating
Bl activities (24,534) (22,417)
BE 5B Investing activities
2 A 2 Interest received 23,445 19,209
B AR E G RT3k Payment for purchase of fixed
(NEHEE#Ef assets other than property under
W) redevelopment (2,307) (1,472)
CRE ARy E S a Payment for expenditure on
property under redevelopment (104,581) (37,010)
i Proceeds from disposal of
it 45 #KJE fixed assets 275 865
Ji ]k B A AR Proceeds from disposal of
4 BT A5 KA available-for-sale equity securities — 8,059
B i it S, Dividends received — 355
5 35 B) B Y Net cash used in
B&FH investing activities (83,168) (9,994)
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FaBlang
BB BN ZH =+ — B

(#) Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
(LA#s #5510 78%) For the Year Ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2008 2007
wa| ¥ Fw | Fm T
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Tl 5 B Financing activities
EffRAEM &4  Capital element of finance
) & A o lease rentals paid (123) (563)
B A il AR 4 Interest element of finance
4 ) ST 43 lease rentals paid (20) (93)
Ff g 2 w4 47 Proceeds in respect of preference
B e T 1 e Ik shares issued to preference
JE R 15 ) IH shareholders of a subsidiary 15 42
EL A BURT A F) B, Interest paid on government
lease premiums payable (121) (122)
SRATE K %E'a,* %XJE  Proceeds from bank loan 130,000 —
B fFHERATEZ M B Interest paid on bank loan (2,642) —
AT H ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁizﬁt Other borrowing costs paid (1,245) (4,609)
B EB TS Net cash generated from/(used in)
(H) B &3 financing activities 125,864 (5,345)
B4 KB4 % EY  Net increase/(decrease)
Wifm, (J8A) H4  in cash and cash equivalents 18,162 (37,756)
#2007/20064 Cash and cash equivalents
4AH1H MBI 4 at 1 April 2007/2006
Be Bl & % 19 457,370 493,916
A s I 2 5 ) Y Effect of foreign exchange
=2 rates changes (1,387) 1,210
H3H31HMB & Cash and cash equivalents
B Bl 4 0 at 31 March 17 474,145 457,370

R4S 121 FL B B A< B S R 1 — 3y

The notes on pages 45 to 121 form part of these financial statements.



(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

1

EEEFEUR

(a) & HIEH

A B 5 B R R R R | R A
B ARAT BT A B s B R
AR o AR A BT A A Y
1 ] <7 s 5 i ) > i
TR MR > Fi AR
JECRI AN T O R AR ) B KR E B
B o A I R A AT A 8
VB W 5 20 5 T AT BR 2~ Wl s o7 |
R e gE B E o LN RA KM
R E = E G EOR M -

T G R RIS B AR T A T IR
AR AT 1 T s B 5 i M)
7% S HE ) 7 A 4R [ A0 A 2 ] E R
(9 € &t 3 1] U A S s AT it R R
PR o B RE2 82 A BR 40 46 FE R 7S
b B 7R A AR BRI S R S AR B
B i 2 AR HE S 8 AL BT 5 B0E AT
AN DAAE & 5 0 ] B & S BUOK A B
9 Bk o

1

i SQUARE

BB FE M EE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

1

£ e 5HEUR (@)
(b) BT 3 2% 1 4 4 4 e

BE_FTZNEF=ZHA=+—H1
FEEMARGMBERERBEASL A
025 B B > m) (AR [ A SR 1) o

B N SCB R & wEECR BT R Y
THEERAMEEAREMHEA
MR > f REA T 55 i o g o DAJER S
JRAAE Fy wt B R E

— HEYE (ZHEHEELE) 5 K&

— UL ATk 4R R AR R R
S TE (2B BE1) -

& At i o 5 i o L) 89 B S
Rz - B JH R B UK
HORE R & B4Rk B - A AT
S B BORUAE B -l S A (R
R o Ja 00 R AR B B SR AR B A
1 48 By 08 B2 g R IRE L R
Fh B 2 TH AR I R AR g - H
AOR N T R AE M kR O K
il 3k A€ B IR A5 00 BB RO AR
TE L BRF ST 17 ) S B F) S B o B PR
ST BEA B Al MO

B B RG  AS B A B A TEAG A A
BR B o WRE R R R RT A
MBI R B E e
fH] PR B R 5 0 R RT3 AN R AR
WIR AR AFEAE BT i
] A0 oA 3R S8 1] o ke R

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred

to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in

the accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 1(e)); and

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 1(d)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)
1 EEEFHECR @
(c) Bt J& 2w K A0 e o
YR
fm.

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests

Bif Jog 2% W12 4 52 A S T o i E
o R A LA E
FE B0 o B R A IR SR I A U G
16 B h RS A 45 o 7E BTl 78 A7 7E
S I > BEIRE AT AT 09 T 18 15 5 b
HRMAZEZS -

ey FACINE S g/ g

IR 2 i A R AR LR
HITEAR & MBS R P Ei et 3 -
4 ) A0 U L A FY) B R AN 4R B AR
22 5y B FLE A W R 8 B A 24 7E
A B 57 B R IR A BOHR B - 4R
B 8 22 B B EE A B R 5 B s 1R
9 IR 8 T 2% B 5 B 4 FUAR[R] - {H
15 9 B RO WA RS R BTN %
R E O BB E R o

4 G E Rk A N I /A
% SUOE M B8 2 ) AR
HE 2 BT A BT 2~ W) B E 9 (E B AT
g3 o T A AR TSI IR A B O LU 4 Y
FE A R SLAE o] A B A 4
Wl iE LM ORI S A
FE I & KRB BMER - D
iR EA A EERARRERA
i HE 4 JH H op 2 B A 2 A HE A
SR A ) HE 45 20 BH 2 51 o D BUBOR
Jiv A AR B2 T 3 0 B i T R TR
I R AR AE D BB R LR A
R i JS R 2 [ AR O e > I AE AR
aHERT IS -

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently

are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
Minority interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Minority interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year
between minority interests and the equity shareholders of the

Company.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

+ Z &5 EUR ()

1

(c)

(d)

0 /2 B

£, (#%)

SR D P RO A Y Js 18 R
o A5 Y P 2 D RO R AR R AETHRS 2 A
1 {7 Bt 8 > g B SRR o — 2 G 1R
68 i 9 A 42 1 P A M 2 5 (HLAn
BB R EJE AT BA R iR
A B A RE T3 AR R A £ LA
s R BR b o G SR B B 2 m) AR Bk
3 M - BT A A Bl A o3 B A
ALEERRESR - B 2 A E Y DL
TEAR I ) D BB A s 48 2 1

[ NI i - AR DR 'l - €
BARAREIN s RAAREEA
f& R N RZ %R 4 RS W
a8 (2B aE1G)) B AR -

] ARk o B R A R

AR 2 B R A R PR g UK
(I B JB 22 71 B9 45 B BR AR JnF

A AR S 4 B R IR E A T
6t A R R A g o T S HE AR R
FF W0 LAAS TERR - LTI AL 5 (|
o BRI R EBET S R
5 Y 5 R 2wl BT DL AR SE AT
SERAG R SRAEAE o BUAS LA AL

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, are charged against the Group’s
interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment to cover
the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the
Group’s interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been

recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)), unless the

investment is classified as held for sale.

(d) Available-for-sale equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in equity securities, other

than investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

The Group designates investments in equity securities as
available-for-sale equity securities. Available-for-sale equity
securities are initially stated at cost, which is their transaction price
unless fair value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from observable

markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs.
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S 785 e M (A

#) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

| ETEEE

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) AJ it B RE 4R R 5 ()

(d) Available-for-sale equity securities (Continued)

P a TR AR - A A R A AR A
HH > ZSHEUAREHEEEN
FIE o AT AT F O EE A 9 2 R Bk 4R
H A i P ERR - LA RE R
J 2l A 4% BB B RE 1(q)Gii) I #Y
BRI R T HERR o W E R E A
e R (B R S B A
p e R 2 BURE 2 R Bk 4R R 1B 4%
HHERE

WA % B R B ATt
fi w7 B > O HE R AR
R A9 2 s 18 & L RE AR P
A 7 8 i AR o 7E 1R 48 P RERD Y
25 e 18 ORI E AR (0 BRAE
i A < P 25 0 S R B IR Y
SAEE 2 A 2250 > k2 DL A
W2 B TE 1R A AR R A0 A AT B(E
i -

ATk B AR B 2 CfE 48 AR P TR
2 PR 981 M 4R S B 2 AR 8 £ B ] o
ia e B O R (E A AT T H AR Y
e H A RERR

B 7 A A R G IR
2 B A 00O A
IR W -

Subsequent to initial recognition, at each balance sheet date the fair
value of these investments is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised directly in equity. Dividend income from
these investments is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policy set out in note 1(q)(iii). When these investments are
derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously

recognised directly in equity is recognised in the profit or loss.

When there is objective evidence that available-for-sale
equity securities are impaired, the cumulative loss that has been
recognised directly in equity is removed from equity and is
recognised in profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset

previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is

recognised directly in equity.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group

commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

1

EE G FBOR ()

)

BOE W 2E R 5 2 e O & Mt A K
R A 4 (R T A B DL R
Rt FF A (2B RE1(g)) A9+ B
SRS > Hh 1 BN R R
A AR ) -

WEMEZE A ARBEHETAKE A
EERT - REWEN AEME NS
By o SRR R B A ST E A
10 AF: ] 22 K] B s 18 X 7E 48 %2 T i
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FE 1(q)Gi) Br e 7 XAHR ©
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%@ o

R S AL 3 R N R
TE H 7 7 2 19 98 3 DA B T I A 3K
TE I 0 SLIE T (2 A0 2
BE - R BB SR B H e
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Investment properties

()

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for

a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair value.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in note 1(q)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest
is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if
it were held under a finance lease (see note 1(g)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to
other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease

payments are accounted for as described in note 1(g).

Investment property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property is classified as investment

property and stated at fair value.

Other properties, plant and equipment

Other properties, plant and equipment, are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation (see note 1(h)) and

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of other properties, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date

of retirement or disposal.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

1
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(g) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the

arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases,

with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held under a finance

lease (see note 1(e)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(g) Leased assets (Continued)

(i1) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded
as obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets over the term
of the relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 1(i).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting
period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(g) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii1) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which

they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment

property (see note 1(e)).
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of other properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings over the shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 40 years after the

date of completion

Furniture, fixtures 3-5 years
and equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(1) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year

in which the reversals are recognised.
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Inventories comprise of stocks of beverages and consumables, are

carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated on the first-in, first-out basis and comprises
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the

reversal occurs.
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1

FEar st R )
(k) AT R A JEG Al R g K

B WA iR T A L At R i 4 2 AR
{E V) e R RS AR 1% 4 8 A Wk 5
IR SR (L AR AR T A ORARR
EL G R sk 2 B 11 BR B O I A
[ E 72 K R e BB e
B B A TR ABR S o 72 M A1
VT MBS & 12 B A 8 25 R SR
80 Y AR P R BRI -

IR W R A R B
SR W T B A AT - Sl DA
FEE 1Y M T (E B2 4% 7 RO PR M
ST B TR ACH & i B (WA
B g U R B 5B 2 T 2
AT WENFBERCOEAEMN
HBEARYBEENE RAKBR
S EE (PR A AER
WA 5 IR ) T B R

B A5 AE R A HR R G Al R iR
AT F R WA B 3K 1 T i [l A
A BEAELSN JF AT REE MR > HC U (B
e DUERF IR % o H AL MR
S WAL F) AT BB MR A R > AR A A
TS [ ) R L S R U
MR > T TE YE 44 JR A B 5% 15 JH A B
{4 A T SO e (] o LR i [m] A
A A Y A TR Y BORE R g 7 E A
SR (] o ¥ AR ) L At 5 B A0 HL AR
QERDEERERSUECEOE (& RO R
s O ERR o

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k) Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of bad and doubtful debts, except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.

Impairment losses of bad and doubtful debts are recognised when
there is objective evidence of impairment and are measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate where the effect of discounting is
material. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about events that
have an impact on the asset’s estimated future cash flows such as

significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

Impairment losses for accounts receivable included within accounts
and other receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit

or loss.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(1) Accounts and other payables
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Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

(m) Bl LB &5 EY (m)Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

(n) & B & (n) Employee benefits

(i) #2308 5 A& A A A e

(1) Short term employee benefits and
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(i1)

(i1)

contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without

realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in

equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.



i SQUARE

W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

1

B 5HEUR ()
(o) FriEH (a0

Br T HLEH R BISMEBLSN - P A
EIEBIH A AR EBHEE (R
BR 78 IR AT fE HE 15 8 A1) % K %E B
TE B E AR AT Y R A R B 4 A1) R
BHERD o SCHRHERD AT K0 R 2
ST AR R E BLIH B R OR R
Bt i A 645 X [ B AT A AE A R
LW IR 22 L 7 A A B 5 (Hig
P[] ) 22 S b ZH L[] — L5 B Bl
Be[A] — REBLET#E A BR o Sl TR AE AT
I 10 B IR 2 ST A (e A9 [ —
fi] B A S Bt JH & 7 T EE A T 4K 4T
Vs 45 AT 18] 4% 1 B 1) T A A R )
] R B [E] o AE PR E H R AE B REBL
T R 22 SR 5 R DL SE R A Rl ok
) F L5 s 180 B RS T E A
F1) 7 S 50 T E R o OB BRI IR] —
HeR) > B2 SR B[R] — BB A B
K] —MEBLE A B - SR 75 TN
T B 8 R A BB s 1R A0 B
AR 9 93 [ S T — SO D PR ]

A ik 5 A A0 S B K E R ARG
Wiy REEA AT ARG
SME DL ¢ S OB
B B 0 46 TR (B SE S
&R R RSN 5 L R BE
Wi Ja8 2~ ) (i ME B 25 5L > R
A B2 1 T LA 42 ) 9 [m] ) g ] o i L
TE AT TH 5L 1951 2 AN K RT BE I Y
Wipze R S TR > Al
HUBRAA AR T RETE A A # ] By 22 52 ) -

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,

in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless

it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0) Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related

dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or



i SQUARE

W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

1

T H R )

(o) FrigH (a0

— BEEBHEEMAM: B
B B e 2 B[R] — BB
B AL LR H o — TH AR
Brigtifie -

— [F—HEBEHE ; &

— AEBWEBER- S8
B s B 1E B AR e T
A AR BEIE SE B IE B R
i R O R I B
Y& AT A [E] R S
N R R B
1B IH T R R
B B B[R] R A B
ZEEMEHEZAM -

(p) MMl M oA B 1R

il 5 AR xR BAS SR B JE B E 8 R
W PR I ik A S R - TR
17 5% 38 05 B & EBUS A KL
E I <P R | A K (B T A DR
wh o g % I P SR AN R 1 A
AR MM - WR WS R E
Ko R EHEAT 5 T 7 SR
BLEF 5 A -

(CESCEEE S/ F €N < g/ T AL
AT RE MR AR > R Mk A B RO
A AT SR 0 il Rt > M % R B
B A ECH B (R INE B E S
U BA T A AR AR B R A o ZH AR TR
SR R R R R A R
it S A 72 ST ) VB AE 3605 - IR & B
B A ECH B HRINE B EES
UL B AT e 1 R AR B B A o

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0) Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the

present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow

of economic benefits is remote.
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I Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(q) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(1)

(i1)

Golf and recreational club and related
services
Revenue arising from golf and recreational club operations is

recognised when the relevant services are provided.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which

they are earned.

(ii1) Dividends

— dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive

payment is established.

— dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-

dividend.

(1v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective

interest method.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(r) Translation of foreign currencies
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Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet

date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at

the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences

are recognised directly in a separate component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognised in equity which relate to that
foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss

on disposal.
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W & B ik () Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.
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(v)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(t) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

®

(i1)

(ii)

@iv)

)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the

Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in

which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family member of
such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint

control or significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i)
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a

related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that

individual in their dealings with the entity.
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W & B ik () Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(u) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to

risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting system,
the Group has chosen business segment information as the primary
reporting format and geographical segment information as the

secondary reporting format for the purposes of these financial

statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, accounts receivable and
properties, plant and equipment. Segment revenue, expenses,
assets, and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such intra-group
balances and transactions are between group entities within a
single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as

those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that

are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets,

borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing expenses.
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Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs and
Interpretations that are first effective or available for early adoption for

the current accounting period of the Group and the Company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements for the years presented as a
result of these developments. However, as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures and the amendment to
HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Capital disclosures, there

have been some additional disclosures provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial statements
include expanded disclosure about the significance of the Group’s
financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising from
those instruments, compared with the information previously required
to be disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Disclosure and
presentation. These disclosures are provided throughout these financial

statements, in particular in note 25.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of capital and
the Group’s and the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for

managing capital. These new disclosures are set out in note 24(f).
Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have any material

impact on the classification, recognition and measurement of the

amounts recognised in the financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not

yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 31).
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)
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Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are property investment and golf

and recreational club operation.

Turnover represents rental income and revenue from golf and

recreational club operation. The amount of each significant category of

B AR B BN revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:
2008 2007
T Tt
$°000 $7000
WEWEMBRS A Gross rentals from investment properties 295 259
15 T R BR B 4 K825 Ut A Revenue from golf and recreational club operation 17,497 18,326
17,792 18,585
\ 7 H= .
3 ¥ i 4 Segment Reporting

PR S5 70 V0 e 3 A 4 T A9 S B
M TR REKR - O B0k RwE D
A B E B o AR B 8
HE R BAMEHI T AT - AL
V] FY e K R R 4 A ) MR A S A
Y E YR A RS PG EE > i w4y 5 B 3
B oy AT B AN EORAR RS o I > Ml
3 Bl 53 A Sl 4 ST 2 51

A BRI R AT

OREZE ik
i T S DL A AL A

(if) 1R R BR e 4 o K6
o6 6 BB 60 BRI T B
L AT B RTRIRSY - Uk -

Rk~ @S E M ERRERE - D
RAERERE -

Business segment information is chosen as the primary reporting format
because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.
Geographical segment presents similar information to the business
segment as the Group’s revenue and results of property leasing were
derived from Hong Kong, while the Group’s revenue and results of
the golf and recreational club operation were primarily derived from

Malaysia. Therefore, no separate geographical analysis is shown.

The Group comprises the following main business segments:
(i) Property leasing
Leasing of industrial premises to generate rental income.
(i1) Golf and recreational club operation
Providing resort services and facilities to club members, including

golf courses, swimming pool, tennis courts, gymnasium and

American pool tables, and food and beverage at restaurant outlets.
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SN IR SR B g :
4 oy EbREr e 4  Segment Reporting (continued)
A 2 =
(a) FrEluWt A K EH (a) Segment revenue and results
43 EB LA S EuA (EH)
Segment revenue Segment profit/(loss)
2008 2007 2008 2007
T Tt T Tt
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
YWEME — & Property leasing — Hong Kong 295 259 282 242
15 T BR R 4 Golf and recreational club
g — AR TG R operation — Malaysia 19,400 18,326 (6,077) (9,238)
19,695 18,585 (5,795) (8,996)
WEWEAGE LA Valuation gains on
investment properties 455,008 649,447
o Ath 4 2 s (E Reversal of impairment loss in
JHe5 1 [ ] respect of other properties 4,014 3,596
R Be iy HoAt g A Unallocated other revenue 23,913 23,197
ROBLH U4 Unallocated operating income
T and expenses (28,885) (27,080)
#8725 ik Profit from operations 448,255 640,164
[Ei8 <9 %N Finance costs (141) (215)
5L T i Profit before taxation 448,114 639,949
T 45 Income tax (48,678) (109,500)
A A B i A Profit for the year 399,436 530,449
M Analysed by:
BEH Turnover 17,792 18,585
HAg A — E i Other revenue — allocated 1,903 —
19,695 18,585
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\ 2 EHE Lk .
4 oraBdRcr ca 4 Segment Reporting (continued)

72

(b) 7> HBE E K B AR

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

i=Eisy
Assets Liabilities

2008 2007 2008 2007

TFIi Tt T T

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

WEME — & Property leasing — Hong Kong 5,497,050 4,904,130 57,922 27,310
BTk gL Golf and recreational club

e — R R operation — Malaysia 238,110 225,113 13,062 14,930

5,735,160 5,129,243 70,984 42,240

Ko EIEH Unallocated items 574,969 553,873 865,660 704,851

6,310,129 5,683,116 936,644 747,091

(c) HAth 438 & B (c) Other segment information
EijE B AR BH 32
Depreciation Capital expenditure

2008 2007 2008 2007

T T T T

$°000 $°000 $°000 $000

WEME —FE Property leasing — Hong Kong — — 137,912 62,733
BT Rk e Golf and recreational club

&g — HARTE R operation — Malaysia 5,302 5,326 1,570 758

5,302 5,326 139,482 63,491

KB H Unallocated items 2,880 2,889 737 715

8,182 8,215 140,219 64,206
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5 HAtgA K (&548) /i#F 5 Other Revenue and Net (Loss)/Income
#H

2008 2007
T+ Tt
$°000 $°000
H At A Other revenue
FLE WA Interest income 22,670 20,393
SR R B UL A Dividend income from listed securities — 210
TeERE > UL & 2% I Management fee received from holding company 1,200 1,200
HoAth Others 1,946 1,394
25,816 23,197
o (548 ) W2k 54 Other net (loss)/income
i A PR Net profit on disposal of fixed assets 249 401
AN S (E598) A FI{F A Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains (1,534) 734
PR T A o R R A R R Transfer from equity on disposal of
1M 4% B HE 25 available-for-sale equity securities — 619
(1,285) 1,754
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6 BRBi AT i A 6 Profit Before Taxation

B B0 AT I A 2 F0BR 7 (FEA) ¢

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

74

2008 2007
TIi T 7t
$°000 $°000
(@) FhE A (a) Finance costs
JREAST IR ) A ) Interest on government lease
premiums payable 121 122
Rl AR B R IE Finance charges on obligations
54 under finance leases 20 93
SRAT AR Interest on bank loan 3,555 —
Al 15 B AR Other borrowing costs 1,228 4,836
B4R RS 48 %5 Total borrowing costs 4,924 5,051
W FIA Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
AL R A * property under redevelopment* (4,783) (4,836)
141 215
* A O 4 4E3.68% ( —FF LA ¢ ) % The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.68% per annum
HAAL (2007: Nil).
2008 2007
T 50
$°000 $°000
(b) HIRA (b) Staff costs
I 78 3 OGR4t 2 Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 940 813
B - L8 K H AR R Salaries, wages and other benefits 24,050 26,085
24,990 26,898
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(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

6 FRBLHET A

BRBLAT SR A S 0BR 7 (REA) + (8])

6 Profit Before Taxation (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (Continued)

2008 2007
T Tt
$°000 $°000
() HAbHH (c) Other items
& W 2 4 Gross rental income from
WA HE%R investment properties (295) (259)
W HEY W Less: Direct outgoings 13 17
(282) (242)
R Wiz i 3 B s 4R Impairment losses on accounts receivable 1,086 789
fr B INA Cost of inventories 1,520 1,840
A% S F T 46 Auditor’s remuneration
— W HUR — audit services 515 479
— B R — tax services 102 76
— oAt Al 5 — other services 151 150
e Depreciation 8,182 8,215
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= f /\ . .
7 EHEME 7 Directors’ Remuneration
R4 7 s 8 R ) 265 161 15 51 i 1) 3 Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong
E 4 S Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
LA 2008
e B & WERAL R8I Lkl
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and Discretionary scheme
Directors’ fees benefits in kind bonuses contributions Total
T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
UhEH Executive directors
S Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,884 700 — 2,634
EBH Cheong Kheng Lim 50 #3,057 700 18 4,025
S A0 Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,892 300 — 2,242
AR Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,470 300 — 1,820
A Cheong Chong Ling 50 782 120 18 970
FHGES Non-executive directors
AR Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 — - 430
Bl Lau Wah Sum 50 380 - — 430
BrkAnES Independent non-executive directors
HEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 — — — 170
% Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 - — - 170
Zh Lee Chung 170 — — — 170
860 10,045 2,120 36 13,061
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(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

== (AN gy e 5
7 EFME @ 7 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)
R4 2 s (8 RGR B) 25 161 15 51 i () 3 Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong
HM e o (4) Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (Continued)
AR 2007
HHE gLk MED  BAGHR Bt
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and Discretionary scheme
Directors’ fees benefits in kind bonuses contributions Total
T T T T T
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $000
YhEH Executive directors
SIS Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,903 700 — 2,653
M Cheong Kheng Lim 50 2,996 700 18 3,764
S840 Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,904 300 — 2,254
M5 Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,736 300 = 2,086
HIA% (R2007%  Cheong Chong Ling (appointed
1H1H LfE) with effect from 1 January 2007) 13 187 — 4 204
SRR (120074 Cheong Been Kheng (resigned
1A 1H&T) with effect from 1 January 2007) 37 1,142 410 14 1,603
FaES Non-executive directors
il Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 — — 430
HE: 4 Lau Wah Sum 50 380 — — 430

NE iy Independent non-executive directors

L Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 = — _ 170
gy Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 — — _ 170
BN Lee Chung 170 — — _ 170
860 10,628 2,410 36 13,934

< EHMEAAE N EE AR EE(ZFE * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential properties

LAE G B MK ST A R S MO N AH) $R I to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (2007: Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and Miss Cheong

fEEWEMEF > MGFHHEELLD 5 Been Kheng) with an aggregate estimated rental value of approximately

2,538,0007C ( ~EE L 4E 1 2,274,0000C) ° $2,538,000 (2007: $2,274,000). Such benefit was waived by Miss Cheong

BT NENH A - SR /N Been Kheng with effect from 12 April 2006.

O IE T AR A
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(a) %% & 16 1 & B s /Y B 4%

(%) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

8 Individuals with Highest Emoluments

9 Income Tax

The five highest paid individuals for the years 2007 and 2008 are all

directors of the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income

E ;E:'! statement represents:
2008 2007
Tt Tt
$°000 $°000
A BB IH — & W R A B Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax
A A JE ol TE ME A Provision for the year 164 166
DA 45 BE HEAH AN 2 Under-provision in respect of prior years — 90
164 256
A BEIEH — WA Current tax — Overseas
A A BE ol TE e A Provision for the year 10 20
A AT U A 388 Over-provision in respect of prior years (44) —
(34) 20
R HiE 5t T Deferred tax
WEYEN RMEEMSE B Changes in fair value of investment properties 75,076 113,653
BT IR 2 L AR R o ) Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (4,162) (4,429)
TR AR ¥ 200744 H 1 H  Effect of decrease in tax rate on deferred tax
14 % 40E ol T 45 Bk 119 5 28 balances at 1 April 2007 (22,366) —
48,548 109,224
48,678 109,500
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

9 ﬁ//%$ﬁ (#1) 9 Income Tax (Continued)
(a) % B 1 R T s M 15 (a) Taxation in the consolidated income

BIEA () statement represents: (Continued)
T v R A5 o YA I A A BT A The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 17.5%
JE S Bl i A LA 17.5% (—FF L AR ¢ (2007: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
17.5%) W) Bl 5+ H o S Bt g 2 Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
F) ) Bl IE DAAE B B A A R BLAT current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.
W_FENE_H_+LH On 27 February 2008, the Government of the Hong Kong
WA AT R BT 2R EF Special Administrative Region announced a proposed reduction
AR E TR R JUE R B R in the profits tax rate in Hong Kong from 17.5% to 16.5% with
A s RS BB % R 17.5% K & effect from the year of assessment 2008/09. Accordingly, in the
16.5% o Bt » 72 48 B AL i A4 B preparation of these financial statements, the relevant deferred tax
W R RF A B A G B T & E AN A assets and liabilities are calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%).
R 16.5% (—FF LA : 17.5%)
A
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9 TS (s O Income Tax (Continued)

80

(b) T 15 B 7 H A 8 B
Kt & &5 A IR

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2008 2007
Tt T
$°000 $°000
I 8 i Ve A1) Profit before taxation 448,114 639,949
Fie HELE AR IR B % A 1506 ) 7Y Notional tax on profit before taxation,
B R GTELBR B i A calculated at the rates applicable to profits
1 4 e Bl TH in the countries concerned 80,476 113,395
AR S H 0 B I R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 657 405
HEJE TR U i 19 0 JE 2 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (4,482) (5,044)
R HE R IR 2 B 1Y Tax effect of temporary differences
i JE R 2 not recognised (1,239 123
AR T LR R B Tax effect of unused tax losses not
T 45 1 B L 2 recognised — 531
ARAE B F DA AR BE R R Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised
P14 56 765 s 4L 1 0 S B 28 tax losses utilised this year (26) _
IK] 2 4 55 0 38 1% 1 Effect on opening deferred tax balances
0 SIE R T 0 4 s resulting from a decrease in tax rate
11 5 2 during the year (22,366) —
AAEEHEGR IR TE B R & Tax effect of temporary differences
R AR E T A recognised this year which are expected
T4 3 1) 7 IR 2 L1 to reverse at a rate lower than the rate
ol L 5 currently applicable (4,298) —
DAFEAE BE e C#R) /AR J (Over)/under-provision in prior years (44) 90
B BLIE S Actual tax expense 48,678 109,500
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9 Fr ﬁﬁﬁc Bl a0) 9 Income Tax (Continued)
(c) &&= A& E &R Urn A (c) Current taxation in the balance sheets
PR B & represents:
A 4 1

The Group
2008 2007
Tt Tt
$°000 $°000

A A i 7 s R A5 B AR Provision for Hong Kong profits tax

for the year 164 166
AN BT ORI A5 B Provisional profits tax paid (125) (102)
39 64
15 4B IH Overseas taxation 5 (69)
44 (®)]
JHE e T 45 A Tax recoverable — (69)
JREASH BT 45 B Tax payable 44 64
44 )
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

9 ﬁ//% B ) 9 Income Tax (Continued)
) T 58 A AE Bl JH & 2 A (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
:% f& -
() A<4EHE (1) The Group
ErEGFEAEEABERMRMN The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
REBLIE (G E) /AR H in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during
BCEB 4> A AR BEE B 40T the year are as follows:
fER  BEHBTE
WEMERS  ABER TS fi A
Depreciation

in excess of

Revaluation of the related

investment and depreciation
hotel properties allowances Tax loss Total
T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $°000

KETHIZERMELRE . Deferred tax arising from:

200644 1H At 1 April 2006 591,474 (1,075) — 590,399
TRE R/ (GEA) Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 113,633 324 (4,753) 109,224
J#20074E3 131 H At 31 March 2007 705,127 (751) (4,753) 699,623
2007448 1B At 1 April 2007 705,127 (751) (4753) 699,623
EREHMG/ GEA) Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 52,396 335 (4,183) 48,548
At AR Credited to reserves (17,613) - - (17,613)
J#20084F3 A 31 H At 31 March 2008 739,910 (416) (8,936) 730,558
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

Y NE ) 9 Income Tax (Continued)
(d) T e 52 4% 1E Bi IH & A (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
ﬁ ﬁlgf C () (Continued)
(i) A2 H] (i1) The Company
O fE & B Al 3R SR R The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
BIH (& E) AR in the balance sheet and the movements during the year are
SRR BT as follows:
RER  RBHRTE
WEMEES  ABERTE BB ER ok
Depreciation

in excess of

Revaluation of the related

investment and depreciation
hotel properties allowances Tax loss Total
T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000

HHFHIZIEMELRTE ©  Deferred tax arising from:

1200654 F 1 H At 1 April 2006 591,474 (959) — 590,515
ERERMEG/ GEA) Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 113,653 317 (4,753) 109,217
TR20074E3 431 H At 31 March 2007 705,127 (642) (4753) 699,732
20074F4 A 1H At 1 April 2007 705,127 (642) (4,753) 699,732
EBETMG/ (GEA) Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 52,396 323 (4,183) 48,536
AR Credited to reserves (17,613) - — (17,613)
Ji*20084F3 A 31 H At 31 March 2008 739,910 (319) (8,936) 730,655
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W M E () Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

9 FrfEHEL () 9 Income Tax (Continued)
(d) . 58 48 1t Bi 15 & & AN (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
E\ ﬁg\ C(#) (Continued)
AL H A ]
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Tt Tt F 7t Tt
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

TEEE B RMEZ  Net deferred tax assets

P 41 4E Fod TH recognised on the

& VR AR balance sheet 97 (109) — —
fE&E AEEMSE  Net deferred tax liabilities

) 40 EE Foi JE recognised on the

KRR balance sheet 730,655 699,732 730,655 699,732

730,558 699,623 730,655 699,732
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

9 PR EBL ) 9 Income Tax (continued)
(€) oA Tl 5 1 08 4 A JA & 2 (e) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

iz B8 B 551 (o) T S A & BT BUR > In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(0),
R K R fE E A B 0 B R ik RE AN the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
B OGRS B F T DL of cumulative tax losses of $26,330,000 (2007: $24,580,000)
K 69 s 18 B w] KA E R 22 A and depreciation in excess of related depreciation allowances
£E [ 1 R 5t £526,330,0000C ( —EE of $10,157,000 (2007: $13,965,000) as it is not probable that
L4 1 24,580,0007C) 19 2 5B future taxable profits against which the losses and the deductible
8 % 510,157,000 00 ( —~FF LA ¢ temporary differences can be utilised will be available in the
13,965,00070 ) 1 /& 88 AH BH 37 2% S Bl relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire
BE O AT RS T RR A B Y R A A TE under current tax legislation.

o RIBBATRE > BRBB KR
A BHE IR -

10 2% F R 4 BER BEAS A 4F i 10 Profit for the Year Attributable to Equity

3l Shareholders of the Company

25 ) HE i R A AR A i A B AE — The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
B8 A AR N A B S ik 2% 19 420,744,000 76 Company includes a profit of $420,744,000 (2007: $549,208,000) which
(ZEZEZ L4 549,208,0007T) fi £ o has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)
11 &E

(a) 7 4F & A 2 = 4 28 A

11 Dividends

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of

8 95) the Company attributable to the year
2008 2007
T oo Tt
$°000 $7000
AR EIR B S AT R No interim dividend declared and paid
(2007 4F : 4E&) (2007: $Nil) — _
REEAMEELEHE K No final dividend proposed after
A2 TR K I B the balance sheet date (2007: $Nil)
(20074F : fiE) — _

(b) J& A £ — B BUAR B E A
o5 W) R g R - 3l R AR
A J3E 41 HE B A G B S,

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the

year
2008 2007
T Tt
$°000 $°000

I 7 b — B U BE Y

TR B BT AR A R o K the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year (2007: $Nil) — —

AF (2007 4F ¢ )

No final dividend in respect of

12 B WA — FEA 2

g e R A J R R e ROA AR B A T RE
7 B R ME A5 % F11399,436,000 UG (&
Z £ 4 1 530,449,000 G ) K B EAT R
W98 B2360,000,000 B (= & L AR
360,000,000 ) FH & o —F T LAF K
Z 2 )\ AF M7 eV AE W] A A
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12 Earnings Per Share — Basic and Diluted

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $399,436,000
(2007: $530,449,000) and 360,000,000 (2007: 360,000,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year. There were no potential dilutive ordinary

shares in existence in 2007 and 2008.
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W M E () Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

13 [ 2 &EE 13 Fixed Assets

(a) A5 H (a) The Group

REmH Jeflod 3 ~ W B it i
Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment
MR A
R LR W% it N EVES Jefb e ANt ¥
Properties held
for leasing
Property under and capital Other
redevelopment appreciation Sub-total properties Other assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T T T
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $000
BB < Cost or valuation:
®20074E4 H1H At 1 April 2007 4,890,000 73,672 4,963,672 333,287 44,599 377,886 5,341,558
E 5 7 Exchange adjustments — 4,509 4,509 20,954 2,514 23,468 21971
o Additions 137,912 — 137,912 140 2,167 2,307 140,219
EE Disposals — - - - (1,985) (1,985) (1,985)
N FofE Fair value adjustment 452,088 2,920 455,008 — — — 455,008
J£20084F3 431 H At 31 March 2008 5,480,000 81,101 5,561,101 354,381 47,295 401,676 5,962,777
R : Representing:
JRA Cost - - - 354,381 47,295 401,676 401,676
i (6 — 20084F Valuation — 2008 5,480,000 81,101 5,561,101 - - - 5,561,101
5,480,000 81,101 5,561,101 354,381 47,295 401,676 5,962,777
Bitii# Accumulated
depreciation:
#200744 H1H At 1 April 2007 — — — 80,421 41,231 121,652 121,652
E 5 5 % Exchange adjustments — — — 4,807 2,340 7,147 7,147
AEEATE Charge for the year — — — 6,452 1,730 8,182 8,182
R B I ] Written back on disposals — — — — (1,959) (1,959) (1,959)
6l (FL A 45 Reversal of impairment loss — — — (4,014) - (4,014) (4,014)
200843 31 H At 31 March 2008 — — — 87,666 43,342 131,008 131,008
e T ¥4 ¢ Net book value:
#20084£3 431 H At 31 March 2008 5,480,000 81,101 5,561,101 266,715 3,953 270,668 5,831,769
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2 A E 458 : . . .
13 IEI e é % (#1) 13 Fixed Assets (Continued)
(a) AREE (@) (a) The Group (Continued)
g HARW¥ - R Ko
Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment
&R EA
TRBYE WEM*E it Kb % HibEE N X

Properties held

for leasing

Property under and capital Other
redevelopment appreciation Sub-total properties Other assets Sub-total Total
it it it it it it it
$7000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $7000 $7000
BAR B : Cost or valuation:
200644 7 1 H At 1 April 2006 4,180,000 67,396 4,247,396 314,056 44,450 358,506 4,605,902
I 5o 7 Exchange adjustments = 4,096 4,096 19,022 2,391 21,413 25,509
WE Additions 62,733 — 62,733 209 1,264 1,473 64,206
g E Disposals — — — — (3,506) (3,506 (3,506
N oA (R Fair value adjustment 647,267 2,180 649,447 — = = 649,447
200743 431 H At 31 March 2007 4,890,000 73,672 4,963,672 333,287 44,599 377,886 5,341,558
Rk Representing:
WA Cost — — — 333,287 44,599 377,886 377,886
fili fH — 20074 Valuation — 2007 4,890,000 73,672 4,963,672 — — — 4,963,672
4,890,000 73,672 4,963,672 333,287 44,599 377,886 5,341,558
B Accumulated
depreciation:
200644 4 1 H At 1 April 2006 — — — 73,466 40,087 113,553 113,553
T S % Exchange adjustments = — — 4358 2,164 6,522 6,522
AT H Charge for the year — — — 6,193 2,022 8215 8,215
IR Written back on disposals - — — — (3.042) (3,042) (3,042)
90 (1 i 8 8 [ Reversal of impairment loss — — — (3,596) — (3,596) (3,596)
JA20074E3 H31H At 31 March 2007 — — — 80,421 41,231 121,652 121,652
i T R A ¢ Net book value:
#20074E3 431 H At 31 March 2007 4,890,000 73,672 4,963,672 252,866 3,368 256,234 5,219,906
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W M E () Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

o o YRS s 0
13 e /é% (#1) 13 Fixed Assets (Continued)
\ =
(b) A2 7 (b) The Company
Eid<¢/ES JeAb ¥ - R R i
Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment
L R EA
TR E Wl Nt e Rt gt L
Properties held
for leasing
Property under and capital Other
redevelopment appreciation Sub-total properties Other assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T T T
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000
BRA B A Cost or valuation:
R20074F4 A 1H At 1 April 2007 4,890,000 14,130 4,904,130 15,964 11,169 27,133 4,931,263
WE Additions 137,912 — 137,912 - 738 738 138,650
JE Disposals — — — — (765) (765) (765)
N AE A Fair value adjustment 452,088 2,920 455,008 — — — 455,008
200843431 H At 31 March 2008 5,480,000 17,050 5,497,050 15,964 11,142 27,106 5,524,156
R = Representing:
WA Cost — — — 15,964 11,142 27,106 27,106
T 1E — 2008 4F Valuation — 2008 5,480,000 17,050 5,497,050 — - - 5,497,050
5,480,000 17,050 5,497,050 15,964 11,142 27,106 5,524,156
g Accumulated
depreciation:
200744 H 1 H At 1 April 2007 — — — 4,545 10,044 14,589 14,589
AEENE Charge for the year — — — 530 465 995 995
T B IR A ] Written back on disposals — — — — (744) (744) (744)
J#20084F3 431 H At 31 March 2008 — — - 5,075 9,765 14,840 14,840
HR A Net book value:
J#20084E3 A 31 H At 31 March 2008 5,480,000 17,050 5,497,050 10,889 1,377 12,266 5,509,316
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

e gpnay 43 = LA .
13 IEI A= é % (%) 13 Fixed Assets (Continued)
(b) A2 A () (b) The Company (Continued)
BEE HAws - s Rt
Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HE R EA
X LB HEW % Nt A% HAb g U X

Properties held

for leasing

Property under and capital Other
redevelopment appreciation Sub-total properties Other assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T T T
$000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $7000 $7000
BAREAGE : Cost or valuation:
200644 H 1H At 1 April 2006 4,180,000 11,950 4,191,950 15,964 11,151 27,115 4,219,065
WE Additions 62,733 — 62,733 — 715 715 63,448
& & Disposals — — — — (697) (697) (697)
A RIBE R Fair value adjustment 647,267 2,180 649,447 — - - 649,447
2200743 H31 H At 31 March 2007 4,890,000 14,130 4,904,130 15,964 11,169 27,133 4,931,263
R : Representing:
JA Cost = = = 15,964 11,169 27,133 27,133
{6 — 20074F Valuation — 2007 4,890,000 14,130 4,904,130 — = = 4,904,130
4,890,000 14,130 4,904,130 15,964 11,169 27,133 4,931,263
EEEE Accumulated
depreciation:
#20064E4 H 1H At 1 April 2006 — — — 4,015 10,265 14,280 14,280
A Charge for the year — — — 530 473 1,003 1,003
iz 1El Written back on disposals — — — — (694) (694) (694)
#20074E3H 31 H At 31 March 2007 — — — 4,545 10,044 14,589 14,589
R A Net book value:
R20074E3 31 H At 31 March 2007 4,890,000 14,130 4,904,130 11,419 1,125 12,544 4,916,674
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

13 B EEE ()

(c)

13 Fixed ASSCtS (Continued)

N N N . o
Yy 2 W T I (B 19 43 B (c) The analysis of net book value of properties
I is as follows:
A 4 8] A\ H]
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Tt T Tt T
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
TE A s In Hong Kong
— R E — Long leases 35,853 38,158 9,467 9,888
— A — Medium-term leases 5,498,472 4,905,661 5,498,472 4,905,661
TE 75 5 355 1 10 Freehold outside Hong Kong
Tk N FERE Y 2 293,491 272,719 — —
5,827,816 5,216,538 5,507,939 4,915,549

(d) BEpEaFERhYE  FET

(e)

ERE W T AL & — AR SE
2R VY B A i RE I AR T I B9 K A S
HE o At 4y 36 B0 45 (R B s 1Y
— I T 38R B — i SE T
T HAL - W T YRR
2R T 5 R R T R BR B S B W) 36 -

MREEENFE=ZH=1—H i
TR EYERHFE B
B2 ik (L R SR04 10T A P A
FRAHE > UM AFRE H 2%
Wy 2E T VAR AL A L 1R B st o
7S BRI T Y R HE AR A AT EE A, - A
FTENEZH=Z+—H > (i Ek
P R 7k K FEHE T b by B AR P AR
— [H] 8 57 B 2 15 {5 fTVPC Alliance
(JB) Sdn. Bhd. » %/ BH T {H ik #E 4
T EA -

Sl e R - R
¥l -

iR

(d) Investment properties comprise property under redevelopment,

(e)

certain units of Good Luck Industrial Building and a piece of
freehold land held for an undetermined future purpose in Malaysia.
Other properties comprise an industrial, a commercial and two
residential properties in Hong Kong, and a golf and recreational

club in Malaysia.

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued on an open
market value basis calculated by reference to net rental income
allowing for reversionary income potential at 31 March 2008 by
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an independent firm of
professional valuers in Hong Kong. The piece of freehold land in
Malaysia was revalued on an open market value basis at 31 March
2008 by VPC Alliance (JB) Sdn. Bhd., an independent firm of

professional valuers in Malaysia.

Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor

vehicles.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

13 [ EEE ()

()

()

(h)

REEAMBEREEH > AL DR
EHEFANRBERTFEAE
JC ( FE L4 1 257,00000) °

AEHUKREHEH L EYE -
g Lol & LU A M X A SR A
FMAE > o B ARSI A
R - T g A Ak 4% T R A
Eo HFEHKREHEANE S A M

o

DAKE & AL 5 A B AR At J7 T3S
HaBlEYEERNTAEYE > B
TR BB TEYE -

A AL AR B5 R ] M BRI AR |
1 H 1% 8 Wk Y B A A B A BB A
A

13 Fixed Assets (Continued)

()

€3]

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of motor vehicles
held under the finance leases of the Group was $Nil (2007:

$257,000).

The Group leases out investment properties under operating

leases. The leases run on monthly basis or for an initial period
of two years, with an option to renew the lease after that date at
which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are receivables as follows:

A 5 1 R AR A ]
The Group and the Company
2008 2007
T Tt
$°000 $7000
14X Within 1 year 35 —

80 1L s 15 (]

o7 1A 55 2l PG 55 09 H At 1 2 90 (E s
8 8] 54,014,000 T ( . FE £
F 13,596,000 G ) /&2 % T HVPC
Alliance (JB) Sdn. Bhd. 7£ — & & )\
A=A RS (IR R T LT

it ©

(h) Reversal of impairment loss

The reversal of impairment loss on other properties located
in Malaysia amounting to $4,014,000 (2007: $3,596,000) was
recognised by reference to the valuation report prepared by VPC

Alliance (JB) Sdn. Bhd. in March 2008.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

H 2 X = 4% :
13 e é % (#5) 13 Fixed Assets (Continued)
() &= K (i) Pledge of assets
REEAMERLGEH > |ITEIE At the balance sheet date, the property under redevelopment with
DL T £55,480,000,000 G ( — & carrying value of $5,480,000,000 (2007: $4,890,000,000) was
£ 4F 1 4,890,000,000 ¢ ) [ E 72 pledged to secure the bank loan (see note 21).

AR B AR (2 B M aE21) -

2 = — é—"; ;L\A . . . .
14 7> B J8 2 7] A HE 4 14 Interest in Subsidiaries
A2 ]
The Company
2008 2007
Tt Tt
$°000 $7000
FE TRy (F AAS) Unlisted shares, at cost 31,084 31,084
- U (E R 1R Less: Impairment losses — _
31,084 31,084
JRE Wi A BB /N F) B OE Amount due from a subsidiary 564,270 562,985
o WE 1R Less: Impairment losses (274,636) (293,392)
320,718 300,677
JE W I B A B 2R TE R W AR - e - Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and has no
Sf7 4 ] 72 3 2 o fixed repayment terms.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

14 7% Fff B 2> W B HE 2

T ARBN WA G 1 P AR S )RR o BR
AAGEYIE SN - BT ERA R 3 2 A

(#8)

14 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

A% o
J Al B 25 LB 49
Proportion of
ownership interest
i ik o7 B T X% w1 A 2 ] B B
AR A8 o &N A AR EEEH
Place of
incorporation Particulars of issued held by held by Principal
Name of company and operation and paid up capital the Company subsidiary activity
Associated International Hil 2 JI% 5 P T A 10 T Ji% 43 100% — BEER
Resorts Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $10 each Investment holding
A R A R 200,000 fi% %5 fi% 17 {E0 17 B 3 100% — A
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong 200,000 shares of $1 each Property holding
Dalwhinnie Limited i 2 8 45 e T (E 10 78 B 3 100% — BEHEK
Hong Kong 2 shares of $10 each Investment holding
Austin Hills Land Sdn. Bhd. LY ) 21,000,002 i 45 i T {5 5 A€ 7 2 76 — 100% B EE MK
Malaysia 170 B 1 Investment holding
21,000,002 shares of MYR1 each
Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. F5 2 75 iE 10,001,285 i 45 [ 18 {E 5 2 75 55 0 = 99.98%  HEA I A8 = T
Malaysia 170 1B 0 2 754 1% 8 5t 1 5 K Bk R 45 & o
T #5624 7 52 T 1 7C fik Proprietor and
10,001,285 shares of operator
MYRI each and 754 preference of a golf and
shares of MYR1 each recreational club
Austin Hills Country Resort EpIE 2 /% % Ji TG A B i 5% o 1 € R M = 100% i 8 R 2L
Pte. Ltd. Singapore 2 shares of SGD1 each Marketing agent
Austin Hills View Sdn. Bhd. LY il 2 B A T (B R A€ Y 5 1 76 B A — 100% FF4 43
Malaysia 2 shares of MYR1 each Property holding
Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd. FG 7 1 B 2 M 5 T L B 24 7 B T 1 76 FBE — 100% F5H ¥ %
Malaysia 2 shares of MYR1 each Property holding

A A 4E BE A > Austin Hills Country Resort
Bhd. ([ AHCRB ) Fi] &% AF K Bk HE 4% & 1)
& B AT T (E 5 AR P 5170170 1) 4
k> UMl BEEMMaEBILE -8
L i TR B E A < 2 S B SR A A (] Y 45
S S REGE T R TR PR R L A Y

B ©

During the year, Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. (“AHCRB”) allotted
various classes of preference shares of Malaysian Ringgit 1 each to
members of the golf and recreational club in exchange for their paid-
in membership fees deposits. These shareholders have the same voting
rights as the existing ordinary shareholders and are entitled to use the

facilities within the golf and recreational club.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

14

16

A B B8 2 B B9 BE £R ()

B A SN B (&
= AEOREE) JE N IR S e SR I R
AN AT P AN A B B S R 2 T Y
# {8 of LA A AHCRB # 5 & I 22 1] o FF
AN A K A B FE R AE A% (B0 AE #% k2
AHCRB I 4 T 18 46 I B A5 2 43 B A 3
FhE ) > A A AR Y I O i A A
JBe o B 48 T S B 300 B A7 A e e A
A R g e M ] o

G ER A bR % 0 a8 AT A 4R A
AHCRB JiT # A # 25 0 1 3 52 28 30 A &
j( o

JRE A T JB§ 2 ] kI

% X VLA SRR S A S o Sl o R P
IR i 722 o

REUCAR K ~ w1 & S TH A 3K

14 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)

15

During the terms or at the expiry of the preference shares which
ranges from 5 to 30 years, the holders of these shares have the option
to convert their shares into ordinary shares, by paying the difference
between the consideration of allotment of ordinary and preference shares
or such other price as the Board of Directors of AHCRB may decide
which shall entitle the holders of such conversion golf membership of
the club in perpetuity subject to any adjustments in relation to the issued
price based on the instalment scheme offered by AHCRB. Should the
preference shares not be converted into ordinary shares at the expiry

date, they will be redeemed at par value.
The Directors consider that the dilution effect of the share issues on the

Group’s interest in AHCRB is not material.

Amounts due to Subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Prepayments
AL AAH
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Tt Tt T+t Tt
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
JHE Wiz B 3K Accounts receivable 7,394 7,080 — —
W R IR e Less: Allowance for bad and
(Kt zE16(b)) doubtful debts (note 16(b)) (5,635) (5,194) — —
1,759 1,886 — —
74 K TE A R Deposits and prepayments 2,124 3,517 1,436 2,194
3,883 5,403 1,436 2,194
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(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

16 MEUHRK ~ T4 M T AT 3K 16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
(#8) Prepayments (Continued)

(a) BRES 17 (a)

MREEAMKGHER - GHAEREIK
HRAR ~ AT B TR A A B R R K
(T 1 BR 2% AR M) A9 AR 8 23 A

Ageing analysis

Included in accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments are
accounts receivable (net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:

o
Y
The Group

2008 2007
T+ Tt
$°000 $°000
I 4 1 Current 416 709
DR L A Less than 1 month past due 91 74
76 1A 1 2 30 H 1 to 3 months past due 278 520

7 1 A 3 1E H More than 3 months but less than
AR 1248 A 12 months past due 974 583
% 41 1A 42 BH Amounts past due 1,343 1,177
1,759 1,886

1o T S BR A 4 SEH Y R — i
T B8 25 H L FT60 K A% 211 - i
EXN-E S APE ¢ E
HHAEF 4R AR o AREEE S
U b 1 50 3008 BT 55 25(a)

96

Debts are generally due after 60 days in respect of golf and
recreational club operation and within 14 days in respect of
property leasing from the date of billing. Further details on the

Group’s credit policy are set out in note 25(a).
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(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

16 MEUHRK ~ HT < M AT 3K 16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

(78) Prepayments (Continued)
(b) JEE U R 3K (E (b) Impairment of accounts receivable
AR R SRR R MER AR T The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful debts

during the year is as follows:

A 4R
The Group
2008 2007
Tt Tt
$°000 $°000
#2007,20064E4 H 1 H At 1 April 2007/2006 5,194 4,091
SRR REN Fi Impairment losses recognised 1,086 789
RGP NI QTR & ] Uncollectible amounts written off (1,040) 5)
T 525 5H Exchange differences 395 319
#3H31H At 31 March 5,635 5,194
W EENAE=ZH=+—H » &4 At 31 March 2008, the Group’s accounts receivable of $5,781,000
[5] A JREE WA b 2 AR I S B s R (2007: $5,342,000) was individually determined to be impaired.
{H 1) BE 3K 455,781,000 G ( —~FF -+ Management assessed that only a portion of the receivables is
F15,342,0000C) o B E B SR L expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowance for
S H A HB 40 E Wi HE 2R i [m] o bad and doubtful debts of $5,635,000 (2007: $5,194,000) was
R > O A RR A R SRR S A recognised.
5,635,0007C (—F% L 4F 15,194,000
JL) e
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16 EUWHIR K ~ 514 M FEAT 3K

(%)
(c) & A W8 1Y 8 i HiE 3k

AE AR ] R B AR 2 A (E Y
W B K B B B o AT AR

16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Prepayments (Continued)
(c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as

follows:
A
The Group
2008 2007
Tt Tt
$°000 $°000
o i W BOR A WE Neither past due nor impaired 416 709
a3 0 i 1| A Less than 1 month past due 91 68
a1 2 36 A 1 to 3 months past due 278 520
7 1 38 A More than 3 months but less than
B> 1218 A 12 months past due 828 441
1,197 1,029
1,613 1,738

o S AT 0 1 O
o 35 99 A 0 B B T
B -

78 015 8 A Bl (L P B AR R %
Af¢ B AL B A R4 SE B AR AR A —
PBILEE o EHIER S > R
HEAE R > RS B R I E R
5 T AT BR A% AT AR 2 T A ol
[B] > By DA 46 25 3 L w4 B (E e A -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide

range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.
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17

18

Bla kB EFEY

iSQUARE

17 Cash and Cash Equivalents

N A% 2 ]
The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

T i T T i T

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

SRAT E WA K Deposits with banks 471,049 452,019 469,741 450,384
SRAT A S B 4 Cash at bank and in hand 3,096 5,351 375 695
474,145 457,370 470,116 451,079

fE AT AR 3K - Ml E AT 3K K E 18 Accounts Payable, Other Payables and

I

At 2 H

W = 22 7 E A5 AR B8 3K 192,728,000 T ( —
T E AR ¢ 5,682,0007T) A > fF A HE AL
R R~ b B A R % B T2 A E T —
N E R o

Tl

V

REEAMRLEHEA > GFEREMNIE
AR~ H A AT R R A G A R
KRB AT AT

Accruals

All of the accounts payable, other payables and accruals except for
$2,728,000 (2007: $5,682,000), mainly represented retention monies

payable, is expected to be settled within one year.

Included in accounts payable, other payables and accruals are accounts

payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:

AR A | AR ]
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
T Tt Tt Tt
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
L H M ek 3% %8 %1 Due within 1 month or
I 2] 1] on demand 376 384 — —
1f# H % H3M# H N Due after 1 month but
ZI| # within 3 months 619 795 — —
318 H #£ {5618 H ' Due after 3 months but
g2 R ] within 6 months 298 171 — —
6ff H 151218 H A Due after 6 months but
F 47 within 12 months 7 10 — _
1218 H % 2| 45 Due after 12 months 290 1,026 — —
JRE A AR 2K 4E 4E Total accounts payable 1,590 2,386 — —
HETREN Accruals and retention monies
JE 5T R payable for redevelopment
JRE A FR B 3K work 56,678 27,234 56,678 27,234
S Ath, 1 AT 3 K Other payables and accruals
JE w2 8,794 8,725 1,073 1,051
67,062 38,345 57,751 28,285
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(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)
19 ClHET &

CliEERAHEHRERGEES
A FE A& —EREE -

20 =I5 B HEA

19 Deposits Received

Deposit received represents mainly rental deposits and membership

deposits and is not expected to be settled within one year.

20 Provision for Long Service Payments

A SR I e A ]
The Group and
the Company

Tt
$°000
R200744 H 1 H At 1 April 2007 1,253
A FE TR Provision made for the year 29
JA20084E3 H31H At 31 March 2008 1,282

AR 8 A s IR 3 R 9D > 7 45 1 ZH0E A%
IR AR B DA B R B AR 6 B AR
FERE LG YL AR H— A 3K - REAS
EREA R B T RAKH & &R E
9> B A A AR AR AR B A A
TR e Bt o AR A
B A A A % A ) 5 5 ) 48 K o

100

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on
the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set

aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

21 sBATE R — A KM 21 Bank Loan — Secured

MROEEANE=ZA=Z+—H  ST8XK
MR

At 31 March 2008, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

A4 8 T A 2
The Group and the Company
2008 2007
Tt Tt
$°000 $°000
2R HS N After 2 years but within 5 years 130,000 —

WFEENETH T H AAE B —
] $R 17 5T 32 — 13 & 3£1,200,000,000 7T 1)
Rl R o R ARAT R B D — 10 E G
HB@rl R —FENAEZ = —
H %1 {85,480,000,000 JC ( — % & £ 4F :
4,890,000,000 7T ) Y 5 2 o 4 2E 0 55 —
[ 7 ¥ 7 e R R I B B A 1
T A — P E MR SR E B IR
RN —EENE=ZA=+—H EH
B9 {7 £ %8 % 130,000,000 76 ( & & L
i IE) o

AR B SRAT R B R AE B AT AR F I
AT e EEABERIRGRNRHER
JrREHUR - S ZRAER EARAE —E B HLE
IR o M Ao T % R o R AR
AR B R AR TR I 5 B - AL H]
BEMERERCASEERW - R
TENFE=H=+—H > A7 E&
BAT AT B2 2 B A BR Y 22k (% %
L4 ) o

On 20 October 2006, the Company entered into a facility agreement
with a bank for banking facilities of up to $1,200,000,000. The banking
facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first fixed legal
charge over the property under redevelopment referred to in note 13(a)
with an aggregate value of $5,480,000,000 as at 31 March 2008 (2007:
$4,890,000,000) and a first floating charge over certain assets placed on
or used in the redevelopment. The facilities were utilised to the extent

of $130,000,000 as at 31 March 2008 (2007: $Nil).

The Company’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet ratios and maintenance of capital at certain required levels. If
the Company were to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Company regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at 31 March 2008 none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2007:

$Nil).
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=0 5 L . . -
il A B R I 22 Obligations under Finance Leases
N oEE)AFE=ZH=1+—H > KEEFK At 31 March 2008, the Group had obligations under finance leases
RS FH S R IE M s 2 R repayable as follows:
2008 2007
B AR & AR & R E FAR A 5
fHacEBUE MRS | MNREBLE SR A
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
Too Too Tt Tt
$°000 $°000 $7000 $7000
L4 N Within 1 year 140 147 124 136
LVAEAR (H 24 1N After 1 year but within 2 years 70 72 121 127
PRSEE JEREAN After 2 years but within 5 years — — 67 69
70 72 188 196
210 219 312 332
o HEAE Less: Total future
AR interest expenses Q) (20)
& AR5 11 B Present value of
lease obligations 210 312
23 FEAT B S 23 Government Lease Premiums Payable
A 45 1} A 2 ]
The Group and the Company
2008 2007
T T
$°000 $°000
JRE AT I s b AR Government lease premiums payable 2,406 2,443
B AL A REAT R K - oA Less: Amount due within one year included
JRE AT 3K % B w2 Y in accounts payable, other payables
14F X A ) s TR and accruals 39) (37)
2,367 2,406
JRE A TR b A R O 4 A AR R A DA Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a fixed
[l 5 AEF 25 HEFE o rate of 5% per annum on the outstanding balance.
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24 EA LAk 24 Capital and Reserves

(a) A5 H (a) The Group

i)t 7ES ARMEE

JBe A ER AINEE it i it YA R B A i A
Hotel

properties Fair
Share revaluation Exchange value Capital Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
T T T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
#20064F4H 1H At 1 April 2006 360,000 1,453,045 (5,623) 354 125,947 2,453,643 4,387,366

5 Yk GG Premium in respect of
BT B preference shares issued

IR 5 B 7 to preference
1135 18 shareholders of
a subsidiary — — — — 112 — 112

{83 A1 I B 5 7] Exchange differences on
AHIMAEFE L translation of financial

il S 2 statements of overseas
subsidiaries — — 9,145 — 9,307 — 18,452

BTl 6 Available-for-sale equity

Eor securities:

— ARMEFESE  — changes in fair value - - - 265 - - 265

— R ERFBA  — transfer to profit or
B loss on disposal — — - (619) — — (619)
AR i R Profit for the year = = = = = 530,449 530,449
200743 H31H At 31 March 2007 360,000 1,453,045 3,522 — 135,366 2,984,092 4,936,025
20074 H1H At 1 April 2007 360,000 1,453,045 3,522 — 135,366 2,984,092 4,936,025

Mt 2 7 81T Premium in respect of
BT B R preference shares issued
B SR f EA to preference
1) i 1 shareholders of

a subsidiary — — — — 78 _ 78

B AN B /3 7] Exchange differences on
PSR TEEE  translation of financial
9 58,7 A statements of overseas

subsidiaries - - 10,082 - 10,251 - 20,333
R B R R A Changes in deferred tax
MR resulting from decrease
BIEEH in tax rate — 17,613 — - — — 17,613
AR R A Profit for the year - - - - - 399,436 399,436
JA20084F3H31H At 31 March 2008 360,000 1,470,658 13,604 - 145,695 3,383,528 5,373,485
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24 EA KA )

24 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(b) A\ H] (b) The Company
P ES
J A AR i P B i A FER )
Hotel
properties
Share revaluation Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
T+t Tt T+t T+t
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
200644 H 1 H At 1 April 2006 360,000 1,453,045 2,557,567 4,370,612
A A B T A Profit for the year — — 549,208 549,208
JA20074-3 H 31 H At 31 March 2007 360,000 1,453,045 3,106,775 4,919,820
200744 H 1 H At 1 April 2007 360,000 1,453,045 3,106,775 4,919,820
Bl R B Changes in deferred
T EE AR tax resulting from
I 7 B T 55 5 decrease in tax rate — 17,613 — 17,613
A AF B Vi | Profit for the year = = 420,744 420,744
200843 H 31 H At 31 March 2008 360,000 1,470,658 3,527,519 5,358,177
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(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

7 = 2 (el c
24 EA KAkt s 24 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(c) A (c) Share capital
2008 2007
Too Too
$°000 $°000
WEE Authorised:
400,000,000+ 48 i 400,000,000 ordinary
BT {H 17T shares of $1 each 400,000 400,000
E#FITREE Issued and fully paid:
360,000,000 4 i 360,000,000 ordinary
45 B T (B 1T shares of $1 each 360,000 360,000
08 A N B RE RS IR E IR The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
W > WA AN R K G F AR declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
B AR— 5 o BIR AN T at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
IR > A R Y = A ] 4% regard to the Company’s residual assets.
R 1
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

24 EA KA )

(d) {5 B PR AR D 2

(e)

T 5 ) = B A ok R A DA A 4
CL i 5% B9V 5 T Al i B o TEEBLE
PRI > 1 5% A e B A IE g R B
JE o WESUEEARYER >
o] FH Bel B9 B A L R el O 1 36
At i 4 A R B AR A o LA R
AH] o IR

A% S [ B ST AMIE ft Ml I 4% B 5
1(r) JIr 0 1 18] 46 0 0 A1 46 7 T S
T A I T B 25 B o R BOR T
Jis B o

AABEEREESREEAMREK
AR BT A A AR S
H 2% SRR 22wt 5 o > 3l 4% Y
A 1(d) P 0 RO 6 R BOR i L -

Rl A R A — TR B S R B AT
A T A S T B ST B R T
il A 45 11 A 5% B )8 2% =) A AT 4 R
) fof A T 38 m 9 O

GG RS

R FEENEZH=+—H > Al
43 IR T 7S N ) HE 25 B S fik A A4
#H £51,253,780,000 7C ( —FE LA ¢
1,235,648,0007C) °

24 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(e)

The hotel properties revaluation reserve represents revaluation
surpluses of hotel recognised in prior years. The hotel has now
been demolished and the site is presently under redevelopment into
iSQUARE. Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties, any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the hotel properties
revaluation reserve to retained earnings. The reserve is non-

distributable.

The exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations in note 1(r).

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of available-for-sale equity securities held at the balance
sheet date and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies in note 1(d).

The capital reserve represents the net increase in the Group’s
share of the undistributable reserve in a subsidiary pursuant to the
issuance of various classes of preference shares by a subsidiary to

preference shareholders.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2008, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was

$1,253,780,000 (2007: $1,235,648,000).
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

24 EA N AE A )
(f) EARE M

24 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(f) Capital management

AEEMEREANELR MR
WA AR B R A RO RE ST o ST RS
FOE R O L 36 RN AT E B R
TR V- A A Y B 8 A% DL K DL B
A BUAG Rl H) O 5o MR R FROR
A 2 (8] i - Sl 27 A AR B N A A
M i o

A 45 ) 7E W R T RN B PR G AR A
W > B SR AE AT RE LA R B £ K OF
2% BOHR /5 19 5 R ) 3 o > BEL R
AR LA AR R SR LR AR
P o St AT R 66 T I I 1 )
EARGEM WME TR )NER F
FTHE=ZA=+—HILFEE > &&E
I91] ) 2R B OGS A R R o

A AR T B8 i R 2Rk B B R AT AR
stk - BEFEMEAR AR LB
G E TR AR BRI E AL - W
Wi & > AL R EEAREEILR
HETERAERUEGEEA
fEF I MR 25 408 - i BTN
HEZHA=+—H > ZEMPEALA
R 2.4% ( ZEELE ) >
7 8 408 SR A7 5 R A B 1 4R AT A7 3K
T Bl 45 £5344,145,000 70 ( —FF L
4F 1 457,370,0007C) ©

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefit
for other stakeholders, by redeveloping and leasing properties,
and pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy remained

unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet. As at 31 March 2008,
the Group’s gearing ratio was 2.4% (2007: Nil) with bank deposits
and cash exceeding total bank loan of $344,145,000 (2007:
$457,370,000).
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W & B ik (4) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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25

ST H

A SR T 7R IR SEF B AR b i B A
MEN &S ~ FIRMEWE R - AEEZE
R SO At B B S A B O AN 1 R
% > BhiE s E o AR ) -

(a) 15 B Ja B

A 4R R (5 8 JE B £ B AR A iR
HRAK o B CE R fF BBOR -
H A B 2 B R 2 (945 B2 LR -

AR & - R A R R
LHE—ESERFENEF - 4%
B E 8 RS B REAL - u A dE
AL % P AR A R B AR TE
ek X HREER S > TeEE
KPR EERUREF K8 P 1E
1 48 P SR BT o 1 T S BR B 44 & %
1R O R — i A B % 2 E H R RH60 K
HEN T4 R 2 1 R KA
e H R4 R NE ] - A
A B BR A% R 190 K Y 1 T R BR
R4 G BARF b 1) #i K AR TE 1
& B RIAENITE) - &R
EEBRE R REEA > ArG
TE B H I BT S BR Ok AT
B o AL WIE F T 4 (2B
FE19) 1F £ E 7 # 5 i (E M YRR K
R 0 -

25 Financial Instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks are limited by
the Group’s financial management policies and practices described

below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Debts are generally due after 60 days in respect of
golf and recreational club operation and within 14 days in
respect of property leasing from the date of billing. Accounts
for members of the golf and recreational club with balances that
are 90 days overdue are suspended and such action will be taken
against defaulting members as may be appropriate. For debtors
of property leasing, legal action will be taken against overdue
debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The Group obtains
deposits from customers (see note 19) as collateral over accounts

receivable that are either past due or impaired.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

A=Y ) 43 9 2 < 5 .
25 /TR ) 25 Financial Instruments (continued)
e A o9, g

(a) 15 B & B (a0 (a) Credit risk (Continued)
7 4L [ S i T K AE R B AR Y The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
UL o AFHE BT RRHCH & AR SEE The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
iR Z S S E b ERAEEA of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
ERIPEHSMEENREHE (2 each financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any
FIT R (R ME ) o AR 4R [ G 4R 1 impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any other
A2 AR B B AR 4 m ORI fE A guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to
i 79 AT o) F A 45 R o credit risk.
B A S 1 A i R KT E AR S Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
A L 2 AR A A AL B o to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set out in note 16.
R HEEL6 o
N 1 PN . .1 .

(b) it B & <5 JEL B (b) Liquidity risk
A AR T Y R R E B A R The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
TR B B e TR o MR AL liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
SRR o TEORMESE SR A B0 Bl to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and an
fet At - [ 167 28 88 A7 7K s 2 11 2 400 1) adequate amount of committed banking facilities to meet its
5 RE5E > LA J 1A AN R A A O liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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25 4l T E can)
(b) Wi B & <& B (0

R L NN o
EEMARNEEARERGEAER
A v R 5 A B R 5% SF K
BRRFTHAERE (BFHLEH
FRBEREERBKREH H W
IR 2 (4 Jig i B s R RS
3K B A S B A0 A R J8 B LS

25 Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at

the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the

Company can be required to pay:

A+ B 97 51
AL The Group
2008
"H
RYTB ER EBIE Bl
Bl A i IR [EEDS B A
W T FL A 32 R0 g 24F S BIlSAE
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T T T T T
$°000 $000 $000 $°000 $000 $°000
A Bk ~ A Accounts payable, other
i B HE =2 payables and accruals 67,062 67,062 64,334 261 2,458 9
CaT 4 Deposits received 5,022 5,022 3,867 — — 1,155
il T B Finance lease liabilities 210 219 147 72 — -
WATE I — A KA Bank loan — secured 130,000 143,024 4,108 4,108 134,808 —
JE A5} SO S Government lease
premiums payable 2,367 4,608 159 159 477 3,813
HoA B £ 65 Other financial liabilities 2 2 — — — 2
204,663 219,937 72,615 4,600 137,743 4,979
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

25 szl T A o) 25 Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) i B & <5 JE B () (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AR E () The Group (Continued)
2007
G#

B N 1A R 2 4F
B4 e o ERDS (ERYS

MR T L Bk 7 I 24F S HIESE
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
TE T TE Tt Tt TE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
AT B 3 Al Accounts payable, other
i 2% R HE 5T E: T payables and accruals 38,345 38,345 32,663 5,656 25 1
BT £ Deposits received 4,977 4,977 4977 = = =
MEHEAR Finance lease liabilities 312 332 136 127 69 —
I A B i Government lease
premiums payable 2,406 4,767 159 159 471 3,972
HoA 5 R 15 Other financial liabilities 2 2 = — — 2
46,042 48,423 37,935 5,942 571 3,975
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W R Mtk () Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

25 4@ T H (g

(b) i B & 4 A R e

AT

25 Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Company

2008
“H

KT8 14K B 14F I 24E

Bl & & %31 (EEDS (RS

MR T Hw 78 0 Iy 24F S4E R 54
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T T T T T
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
JEAT RS HAMtLfE  Accounts payable, other
15 3k R TE =T 2 payables and accruals 57,751 57,751 55,313 — 2,438 —
EEIE Deposits received 1,245 1,245 90 — — 1,155
JRE A5} B B /A ) 2 TR Amounts due to subsidiaries 20,109 20,109 20,109 — — —
WATE K — A Bank loan — secured 130,000 143,024 4,108 4,108 134,808 -
R A5} B S 18 Government lease
premiums payable 2,367 4,608 159 159 471 3,813
211,472 226,737 79,779 4,267 137,723 4,968




i SQUARE

W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

N\ H - s 5 5 § :
25 <Rl T E o) 25 Financial Instruments (continued)
ey 1 A . c 50 .
(b) Ui B & 4 JR g e (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AN T (4) The Company (Continued)
2007
B
RITH 14E A A 24
B 45 U B (EEDS (ERPS
MR T A 78 1 IR 24 54 A S AE
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
T Tt Tt Tt Tt T
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
JEE A B~ L At Accounts payable, other
i 3% K JE 5 payables and accruals 28,285 28,285 23,629 4,656 = —
BT £ Deposits received 77 77 77 = = =
JE A Y B 2 | 20E Amounts due to subsidiaries 19,051 19,051 19,051 — — —
A5 LI o Government lease
premiums payable 2,406 4,767 159 159 471 3,972
49,819 52,180 42,916 4,815 477 3,972
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W & B ik (4) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

25 4@ T H (g

(c) 2R Ja b

25 Financial Instruments (continued)

A 45 T Y A R R B R B R
fRE o R R AL EAERZE
A U B N AR e B o A SR P B B
XA DL T Q)P

(i) ARV
T RS E R R
H oA 4 B R R o ) B A A

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term

borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group

to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as

monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(1) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group’s and the Company’s borrowings at the balance sheet

YL - date:
AL E AR H
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
HBEA R B 2 B BEA R A 2R
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate Tt rate Tt rate Tt rate Tt
% $°000 % $°000 % $°000 % $°000
ER A Fixed rate
borrowings:
&M Finance lease
=R liabilities 2.35 210 2.35 312 — — — —
FEAT B Government lease
bR premiums
payable 5.00 2,367 5.00 2,406 5.00 2,367 5.00 2,406
2,577 2,718 2,367 2,406
IEEH & Variable rate
borrowings:
$R17E K Bank loan
— K — secured 3.16 130,000 — — 3.16 130,000 — —
fE4¥48%1  Total borrowings 132,577 2,718 132,367 2,406
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

CH . . .
25 L HE ) 25 Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) F 2 Jal B (4

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) U BE 4 A

(i1) Sensitivity analysis

AT EENEZA=Z+—H
fhst B A REE - H TR
50 %% By > n b i A At w] &
PR3 Ak 15 R 5 > A% 4R [ BR B
1% s 1 K AR B8 s AR DRI R
/8N #1650,000 TG o
BITEEHER 2T LFE =
A=+—HKRE A -

gl IR B A T AR R R
NEEAMRET HAE K
A M HE N R H EAF
TR JE i AR 4 B A ) R
JE B A AE o 50 3 25 1 BR AT
REMEBHMNERPNET
FEEEAMBRSS B M
] Bt BR A 4 B B Y B4 o

At 31 March 2008, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits by approximately
$650,000. At 31 March 2007, the whole banking facilities

were unutilised.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 50 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next annual

balance sheet date.
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W & B ik (4) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

L Fh T 428 = > . . .
25 R T A () 25 Financial Instruments (continued)
N A .
(d) FMIE = B (d) Currency risk
A1 JEL B A B Dl RE R E A Foreign currency risk arises when recognised assets and liabilities
5310 3 DA A 4E [0 T e & W R E are denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s functional
IRFE A o BB A A 4 [ 1 A1 U B currency. The Group does not hedge its financial assets and
AR E FEITE AR o B AL liabilities denominated in foreign currencies in the view that the
9] M7 0 3 i DL AR W ST A 4 Rl Group’s foreign currency risk exposure primarily refers to the
FE B AR o fixed deposits denominated in United States Dollars.
() AR L B 7 4 (i) Exposure to currency risk
T R w5 A 4L H K AR\ R The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
HEAMREE H T REU exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
%0 FHE W B R K 2 E from recognised assets denominated in United States Dollars:
A B A1 JEL B
A AR B A A
The Group and the Company
2008 2007
FiLT e XL T T
USD’000 USD’000
REUT IR ~ 7T 4 Accounts receivable,
Je E AT 3k deposits and prepayments 77 176
W4 MR EZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 59,150 56,278
e B R A AR Overall net exposure 59,227 56,454
(i) U (ii) Sensitivity analysis
TEIRNREEABERESER The following table indicates the approximate change in the
H S 78 45 B 5 & K JEL B A9 2h Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) in response to
e HE 2 AT R BRI S PR A reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to
o) 3 A 4 (8] B B AR s A (B R which the Group has significant exposure at the balance sheet
B i M) B HE A s - date.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

25 4@ T H (g
(d) ZIMIE J& B ()
(i) MU BE AT (4

25 Financial Instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i1) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Z N L]
The Group
2008 2007

A ¥ I 2 H R BiA& S T 2 HERBIE
EFt wE AR EF 0w AR
CFWRE) A A 5g 8 (R RE) e A ) s 28
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease)  profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
Tt Tt

$°000 $°000

BN United States Dollars 0.89% 4,087 0.46% 2,032
(0.40)% (1,836) (0.82)% (3,613)

BORRBE 73 i T 1B A I
MEERBKRGHE B AP X
S 1 > S M R A S
HEHEBNRZACAER N
A 45 Tl T EL Y S B R 4
CRAENCE SRR
R R Al A ) RIS -

Jiv At 5 AL A 3R 2 g B 4
EXRHANETEEEEA
R 3R 45 5 H 0 ) AT RE Hh BN
FHEBH A EREM
9 20 A7 &5 R BUR A 5 B A5
DL & A o ae B R (E A9 BR
Bl A% i ) B R B i ) AR AR K
AR B A R
WA LW UE R MR %
AR Y B i AT R R
TR LA AR B R AT o

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to each of the
Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date, and that all

other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over
the period until the next annual balance sheet date. Results
of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the effects on each of the Group entities’
profit after tax and retained profits measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date for
presentation purposes. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2007.
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W & B ik (4) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

25

26

4 T H )
(e) '~ NfEE

74 S5 B 40 4 T L B
BOEEAER O FF LA
S bR R R A
2 509 WO B -

I 8 1B K48 A

A% B2 O] i R s O o M S B 4w AR
BI) 0K 2 o B R s IR AR 10 1))
HE 1 AR B RS 5 T e S B w8 (T o
BRast#l]) o s ash 2 B
Z b NE B R E i FORREE# o AR
AR E > B EAE B A EE B
A B B 5% ) w8 4E & A B
AW AHBE A B L BR 220,000 7T © Bk &
BEFRAN > 7S 45 [H NI 4% kA 1R AR BAR B A
1£.20,0007C 5% 15 5 B REHEAE 3 5 (R
B B A A A E30,000 7T 4 BR o 5t E]
AE LB 1 A3 3 B IR 1 27 B 7 4 B A A

7 S [ 7 1 20 G R S A 35 R 2 ) 1Y
& & > B2 o 7 el o B0 T % I8
BARBRERFRABESFH TAKS
FEE ) o 5 LR N W T B R B S
[97.5% % 14.5% A 55 1) L R AR A 3 e
B (A 3R A0 o AR B ST 0 A A B 4w
1 F A 35 AT o

AR BE R - 0% iz A BOR AR A
A 45 1] 3£ 51,000 00 (=& & B4R
) o R FENFER -ERZLEZA
= — H i i R pE A 4 A Y R Uk

ek

25 Financial Instruments (continued)

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2008 and 2007.

26 Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$20,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant income
in excess of $20,000, subject to a maximum monthly income of $30,000.

Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Malaysia and Singapore
are members of the Employee Provident Fund and the Central Provident
Fund (the “funds”) operated by the respective local government. The
relevant subsidiaries are required to contribute to the funds at rates
ranging from 7.5% to 14.5% based on the salaries of the employees.
The only obligation of the Group to the above funds is the required

contributions at the applicable rate.

During the year, forfeited contributions of $51,000 (2007: $Nil) were
utilised to reduce the contributions payable for the year. No unutilised
forfeited contributions had yet to be applied by the Group at 31 March
2008 and 2007.
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W & B ik (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

27 RIE 27 Commitments
(@ MH_FFENFE=H=1—HFKMHE (a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2008 not provided
57T SR B 5 i 3= 0 A 0 & for in the financial statements were as follows:
ARYEW R -
PN YL NG |
The Group and the Company
2008 2007
Tz T
$°000 $°000
EFT4 Contracted for 1,071,999 126,446
ACEENE=ZH=+—H > i At 31 March 2008, the estimated cost of construction in respect
JL HE i BOAE 63 95 (JLEE A BE 7425 of the development of iSQUARE on the site located at No. 63
BE ) Fh R S R B ut B R 5 A Nathan Road, Kowloon (Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425) is around
A B A EHAT 13480T - $1.3 billion.
by RoEENE=ZH=+—H R (b) At 31 March 2008, the total future minimum lease payments under

AU EBRR Y EREHEE &
JREAST 19 s R AEL B A5 SBCRR AR BN

non-cancellable operating leases of properties are payable as

follows:

AL A AT
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Tt T Tt T2
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
1A Within 1 year — — 500 1,200
LAEAR(H 54 N After 1 year but

within 5 years — — — 500
— — 500 1,700

Ao RUKEHEHEN W%
WRFAN - EHE R 5P 4
A HA RESE R B ) AR A - e
I JT A fo ek 3 T R E o AR AT
HEE W FEWERS K> DR
MG HE -  KEHEASAGSHE

4 -

The Company is the lessee in respect of a property held under
operating lease. The lease runs for an initial period of two years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually reviewed every two years to reflect

market rentals. The lease does not include contingent rentals.
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W & B ik (4) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

28

29

HA AR

R FELET—H > AL
JB 2 AN B B 1] B SR L AE IS 2R
HEERRETEEERR —EHYUD
1,300,000 7 ( R 5% Bt /8§ 2 w1 & 40 48 %6 Jik
F I R A5 B ) I BKCTE o fHL I R I 3 R BE
EEBR R ZFFENFE—H Z+ N
H A BB R — E R L2 8240
B H AR K £ i > BB 4 244,700,000 70
1 FKIE o

% M i 2 IEAR R IA R Rz R R
ikt o EEERL - HRZEMEVIER
Y12 W B R A PR A BB Rl o T DA A
% I R G A

b

HI TR PR AN T s 5 5 8 B ) 56 7 5%
[ LR : #5%] RCE®BgFHEERD
FIBRERTT MBI RN 25 - EAHK
B A THBREFOAAELRE M
i 5 A 4T B 1Y) B % 5 ) A K% 43 BA B s IR
CRER)EE R EEE H R B -
A B % 4 e J) AL A L b R B SR B
FE2 o

H 4B R S AERETT

EFGRL > AREANR_FFNE=A
ZF—HWEESR R R REEETT T
Al 7 R A PR 2> 7] AR P8 A BR 2
Al > MR A AR A RERGL » B
B )& T A BB MBS RR > R
HAPERE DT I A e AT kO B G S
% o

28 Contingent Liabilities

In November 2007, an overseas subsidiary filed a claim in court
against a subscriber of the golf club membership in Malaysia for the
payment of approximately $1.3 million being the remaining outstanding
balance of certain preference shares of the subsidiary. However, the
subscriber refuted the claim and filed a counter claim of approximately
$4.7 million on 28 January 2008 on the alleged grounds that the subscriber

had suffered loss of reputation and other losses.

The subsidiary on legal advice is contesting this counter claim. The
Directors are of the opinion that no provision for the counter claim is
necessary as the case is still at its preliminary stage and pending court

hearing.

29 Comparative Figures

As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures,
and the amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:
Capital disclosures, certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform with changes in disclosures in the current year and to show
separately comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for the
first time in 2008. Further details of these developments are disclosed in

note 2.

30 Immediate Parent and Ultimate

Controlling Party

At 31 March 2008, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Land Limited
and Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited respectively, both of
which are incorporated in Hong Kong. The immediate parent produces
financial statements available for public use and the ultimate controlling

party does not produce financial statements available for public use.
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(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

31 BEMEAERSE - FF/N\E

=A=+—HILFEE M RE
Y ﬂ“%T A HE RN A G R 1Y

] HE 5 B

BWEAMB RS B FiEaatam
NE OB ZIH M RERE T F/\F
ZA=t—HIREEEY . FRAEAR
BB R R T BB BT - R YR IR R R o

A 42 [ IE A WAl 72 e B T ~ B e A0 3
e T TH w355 0 46 8 0 BT A AR Y R
B B H A& AR - RAE e
RT > B BRI R e R A A Y AR S
A5 F0 Bt BOIR LA B EE K 5 R ) T REME R
T

BEAL - DA HE I8 AL T B8 51 B 5 ik
TR P 55 8 1 AR A T 1Y 2 51 K R

31 Possible Impact of Amendments, New

Standards and Interpretations Issued but
not yet effective for the Year Ended
31 March 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2008 and

which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant

impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or amended

presentation and disclosures in the financial statements:

U HH

2 1% BH 4k B

& w3 AR 2K
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

i ol I 5 i o Y L)) 25 8 5t
HKFRS 8

28 5% 4348 20094F1 A 1H

Operating segments 1 January 2009

CHRWgRHERD 55198 (BT
HKAS 1 (Revised)

WA 5 R R 1 2 51

Presentation of financial statements

20094F1 H 1 H
1 January 2009
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HAR MBS Five Year Financial Summary

(DA %1 78)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

S 2k
e Results
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Tt Tt Tt Tt T
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
=& ¥ Turnover 334,790 439,775 344931 18,585 17,792
#8725 Y5 Profit from operations
(31%2) (notes 1 and 2) 120,124 325,711 345,323 640,164 448,255
Al AR A Finance costs (296) (157) (166) (215) (141)
%% A8 1l ¥k A Profit before taxation 119,828 325,554 345,157 639,949 448,114
FrfE B (32) Income tax (note 2) (9,660) (52,652) (58,090) (109,500) (48,678)
2 ) HE 2 IR Profit for the year
JEAGA4AEEE R A attributable to
equity shareholders
of the Company 110,168 272,902 287,067 530,449 399,436
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(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

i SQUARE

; = j: . . . .
& KA fE Assets and Liabilities
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
I e B Fixed assets 3,647,210 4,214,641 4,492,349 5,219,906 5,831,769
HAb#B 5 & ~  Other investments
Tl in securities/
R 25 75 25 available-for-sale
(F£1) equity securities
(note 1) 7,351 7,440 7,794 — —
I 4 B TE Deferred tax assets
(§E2) (note 2) 4,263 122 116 109 97
L) G Net current assets 306,373 387,989 480,641 418,338 404,713
3,965,197 4,610,192 4,980,900 5,638,353 6,236,579
RAITE XK Bank loans
—F K — secured — — — — (130,000)
AT B i AE Government lease
premiums payable (2,511) (2,478) (2,443) (2,406) (2,367)
Rl & FH 5 R Obligations under
finance leases — (841) (575) (188) (70)
% AE B JE B 5 Deferred tax liabilities
(§E2) (note 2) (143) (536,046) (590,515) (699,732) (730,655)
oAt B 5 £ K Other financial liabilities (1) (1) (1) ) )
agr3E RN NET ASSETS 3,962,542 4,070,826 4,387,366 4,936,025 5,373,485
A Share capital 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
it (GE1%2) Reserves (notes 1 and 2) 3,602,542 3,710,826 4,027,366 4,576,025 5,013,485
HE 35 48 % TOTAL EQUITY 3,962,542 4,070,826 4,387,366 4,936,025 5,373,485
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TR MBS (4]) Five Year Financial Summary (Continued)

(LA#E 51 75%)  (Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(0]

@)

HRFE (R G RHERD) 399 BT [ A A HE
MR I BLE > ARl —FERENA —
HAEAERT T A B HE 45 78 25 50 10 & ST BOR - R
35 7 IEUE U () 8 PR A S - AT R R R I
LS SR E7 9N CIN 3 o9 e =2 <% oy 1|
H— E B2 o8 (B 00

A E R G SHERDD 4098 B E W 3 A
(B (HREBEE ) /) 2058 T8t
— CEA IO M R Ul B RLE o AR
Bl AR A — BT T A B R B
B Sy o AE B B AN 158 R YA
{0 58 ) Jr 2 24 9 208 S B T w0 & EOR o AR
B s v U A A O R S o A B RO G A
BHOYOE MM o mR ER - F RN T
WARRIAT > SO B BT AR T o

Notes:

()]

2)

In order to comply with Amendment to HKAS 39, The fair value option, the
Group changed its accounting policy for investments in equity securities with
effect from 1 April 2006. In accordance with the transitional provisions of the
standard, the changes in accounting policy were adopted retrospectively but the
opening balance of the fair value reserve as at 1 April 2005 was not restated.

In order to comply with HKAS 40, Investment property, and HK(SIC)
Interpretation 21, Income taxes — Recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets,
the Group changed its accounting policies relating to recognition of movements
in fair value of investment properties and measurement of deferred tax on
movements in fair values of the investment and hotel properties with effect from
1 April 2005. In accordance with the transitional provisions of the standards,
the changes have been provided retrospectively. Figures for 2004 have not been
restated as it is not practicable to do so.
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